8 Bl

Stock Code & #34X5% 8160

2012

Annual Report F3&

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

MEBEREBEERABIRAF

(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(RFSEEEMMZAERAE)



mEBREEZERER QT
—z—=#5% 01

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited.
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: 1. the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading; 2. there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
in this report misleading, and 3. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Financial Highlights
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BUSINESS REVIEW
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

i Bl R ’Eln‘i RER DA

MBHE

Year ended 31st December

BEt-A=1t-HL¥E

—z——=58% 0/

2011 2010
% —T-%F
Operating Performance REERRR
Revenue Wegx 91,155,199 69,592,354 37,317,993 19,545,963
Operating profit/(loss) 2B/ (BB) 44,748,676 31,509,005 13,606,109 (3,307,288)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: N
wFl,/ (B8

Equity holders of Company KRaERERA 32,871,668 21,264,683 9,185,202 (3,187,896)

Non-controlling interest Eudilligy - = 364,329 (288,923)
Net cash generated from/ BEEBME/

(used in) operating activities Gigiilraika 28,756,392 (6,296,456) 15,055,682 7,580,732
Earnings/(loss) per share — basic  BREF|/(&#8) — £K  HK18.26 cents &1l HK13.63 cents /&fll  HKB.80 cents &l (HK2.36 cents 7 1l)?
Financial Position BRI
Borrowing E) 30,706,458 1,690,842 = =
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/ (AfE)FE 58,179,343 31,899,447 (8,676,685) (41,678,409)
Shareholders’ equity RE#ER 119,065,005 85,541,414 15,285,116 (14,557,729)
Net assets/(liabiliies) per share ~ HREE /() FE HK66 cents 1l HK55 cents #8fl  HK11 cents i1l (HK9 cent 7 il)
Capital expenditure BARER 15,564,155 10,033,888 171,604 564,433
Key Ratios and Data FEHEREE
Profit margin BRRN 36.06% 30.6% 25.6% N/A NiE
Current ratio VRS 3.49 times % 2.87 times f& 0.35 times f& 0.01 times %
Return on equity Nk 27.6% 24.9% 62.5% N/ATER
5 The weighted average number of shares used to calculate the basic ~ * HE_ZTTNF+_A=1+—HLEFE AR

FTESREAREERZ NEFHREBIERAR
2 2 1TRX 2~135,000,001 IR AR 1 » W 1R B 5%
135,000,001 MR —EZNF—A—HBE
LT o

loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2009 includes the issued
share capital of the Company of 135,000,001 shares and assuming the
185,000,001 shares were in issue on 1 January 2009.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Group”), | am very honored to
announce that our Group has completed a truly remarkable year in
terms of both financial and operating performance for the year ended
31 December 2012.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in operating budget boutique hotels,
providing hotel consultancy services and hotel management services
in the PRC.

During the past financial year, our team has worked extremely hard to
achieve many of the set targets in operation standards and financial
return. The Group recorded a net profit of HK$32,871,668 for the year
ended 31 December 2012 compared with a net profit of
HK$21,264,683 for the same period of last financial year, representing
a significant increase of 54.58%. The net profit was mainly due to the
recognition of revenues generated from the provision of hotel
consultancy services and hotel management services in 2012, and
also the improvement of performance from the hotel operations in the
second half of year 2012.

In 2012, apart from focusing on maximising financial return for our
shareholders and investors, major effort has also been spent in
strengthening our organization structure. The re-structuring is not only
crucial for our foreseeable rapid future expansion in our hotel network,
it is also important to the continuous improvement in our service
standards. As a result, our management team is more robust with an
increased capability to take on the challenges ahead. The group has
always regarded human resources as one of our most important assets,
and we will continue to invest in our people in terms of training and
recruitment to improve our overall management efficiency and
effectiveness.

AANEREWBBEREEZRBRAR (KK
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#132,871,668/8 T * M E—HBFERLA A
TR A21,264,6838 T © AlBiEK54.58% o &%
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ME - AEB-—BERANERESRMARE
EWNEEZ —  RPIBEBERNEREA NS
IR T - MR RPN EREER
RER K o




OUTLOOK

The prolonged unresolved sovereign debt crisis in Europe and the slow
and uneven recovery of the US economy had a negative influence on
China’s economic growth. The recent QE3 measures launched by the
US Federal Reserve are likely to induce asset inflation, and the “financial
cliff”, if unresolved by the US Congress, would cause even greater
uncertainty to the world’s economic recovery. Under these
circumstances, China’s economic situation would likely be affected in
the coming year.

In the light of a likely economic downturn, the low cost hotel
accommodation sector will be relatively less affected hence the Group’s
revenue would be expected to remain stable or increase. In addition,
the overall income will be improved upon completion of the five new
leased and operated hotels in Guangdong Province in the coming
months. For the past few years, the Group has successfully adopted
a capital-light growth strategy, that is by capitalizing on our skill and
experience in hotel design and management to provide hotel
consultancy services to hotel investors. In order to ensure more steady
flow of revenue and secure sustainable growth in the future, the group
will concentrate more on looking for multiple locations and sources of
funds to expand our leased and operated hotel network in the coming
years.

The Directors are optimistic about the future development of the
Group’s business and will continue to implement the well-established
business strategies as well as explore other business opportunities in
order to enhance the Company'’s value and to bring outstanding return
to shareholders.

APPRECIATIONS

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the members of the Board of Directors, management team
and our employees for their dedication and contribution to the Group.
| would also like to express my appreciation to our shareholders and
business partners for their enduring support and confidence in the
Group.

Fong, Man Kelvin
Chairman and Executive Director

12 March 2013
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Management discussion and analysis

B Mo

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in budget hotel operations and
provision of hotel consultancy services in the PRC.

Hotel Operation

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has five
leased-and-operated hotels and two managed hotels under operation.
The Group had confirmed five new hotel locations and entered into
the leasing agreements with landlords in 2012. All the five new leased-
and-operated hotels are located in Guangdong province, which are
currently under construction and renovation. The Group expects these
five new hotels will commence operation in 2013.

The Group continues to focus its strategy on delivering values to
budget-conscious hotel guests, such values included stylish design,
cleanliness, comfort, friendly service, geographical convenience and
safety. The Group develops its hotel through leasing part of existing
commercial buildings and converting them into hotel accommodations.
This strategy can help the Group not only open up a wider choice in
selecting potential sites for new hotels but also substantially reduces
the lead time and startup cost for hotel conversion when compared to
a normal green field hotel project.

Future Development and Outlook for Hotel Operation

In August 2012, the Group confirmed a location in the North of Xiachong
Fairground, Daya Bay district, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC, to develop its sixth leased-and-operated hotel (the “Xiachong
Hotel”). The leasing period is ten years which started from September
2012. The renovation work for Xiachong Hotel has started in the fourth
quarter of 2012 and is expected to finish refurbishment in second
quarter of 2013 with the commencement of operation in the second
half of 2013.

In July 2012, the Group confirmed a location in the Huicheng district,
Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, to develop its seventh
leased-and-operated hotel (the “Huizhou Binjiang Hotel”). The leasing
period is ten years which started from December 2012, the renovation
work for Huizhou Binjiang Hotel started in December 2012 and it is
expected that the Huizhou Binjiang Hotel can commence operation in
the second half of 2013.
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In March 2012, the Group had identified two locations in Meilin, Futian
district and Shekou, Nanshan district respectively in Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, the Group successfully entered into
the leasing agreements with landlords in February 2013, to develop
its eighth and ninth leased-and-operated hotels (the “Meilin Hotel” and
the “Shekou Hotel” respectively). The leasing period for both locations
is ten years starting from March 2013. It is expected the renovation
work will start in March 2013 and complete in the third quarter of
2013.

In December 2012, the Group confirmed a location in Changping
district, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC to develop its
tenth leased-and-operated hotel (the “Changping Hotel”). The Group
expects refurbishment work to be completed in third quarter of 2013
and the Changping Hotel to commence operation within 2013.

The Group plans to continue to expand its network in the PRC with
focus on the Southern PRC, in particular, the Guangdong Province in
the next two to three years. The Directors believe that the continuous
growth of the demand of budget boutique hotels in the PRC will provide
business opportunities to the Group to expand its businesses across
these cities.

Hotel Consultancy Services

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had entered
into twenty hotel consultancy agreements with five investors for the
provision of hotel consultancy services. These investors are
independent third parties who are not connected with the Group other
than entering into the hotel consultancy agreements with the Group.

Subject to the negotiations with individual hotel investors, the principal
terms of the hotel consultancy agreements are generally similar.
Pursuant to the hotel consultancy agreements, the Group provides to
the hotel investors the following services:

(i) site selection through detailed studies on the traffic flow etc.;

(i)  site assessment and feasibility analysis;

(i)  preparing ISO 9001: 2008 operating procedures and quality
manual;

(iv)  hotel interior design; and

(v)  construction contractor selection.
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Management discussion and analysis

B Mo

Outlook for Hotel Consultancy Services

The Group is currently implementing a branding strategy to refresh
and streamline its brands to better appeal to its target market segments
and to serve as a platform for its expansion into the consultancy
business. The Directors believe that the successful track record of the
Group’s hotels is one of the reasons that attract hotel investors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has a remarkable growth for the year ended 31 December
2012 and is pleased to announce a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$32.87 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately HK$11.61 million or 54.58% compared
to approximately HK$21.26 million for year ended 31 December 2011
(the “Last Year”).

Revenue

The Group’s growth momentum is carried forward from Last Year to
the year ended 31 December 2012. The Group reported a total revenue
of approximately HK$91.16 million (2011: approximately HK$69.59
million) and recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately
HK$21.57 million or 30.98% from the Last Year.

Revenue mainly came from the hotel consultancy services of
approximately HK$58.19 million, representing approximately 63.83%
of total revenue. It increased approximately 37.88% or HK$15.99 million
from approximately HK$42.20 million in the Last Year.

The following table shows the key information of each of the Group’s
leased-and-operated hotels for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011:

Total et
Total available room nights 4] R R 2K
Occupancy AfE &
ARR (RMB)* FHEM(ARE)
RevPAR (RMB)~ FHEREEKRA (AR~

ARR: the average room revenue of all hotels divided by the total occupied
room nights

= RevPAR: the average room revenue of all hotels divided by the total
available room nights
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BT ARER/ERLS BETED I RIER
BREEREBZ T e mETERRIGHME
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IFE ([EFE]) #21,260,000 7T @ 1R F1
£ #J11,610,0007 7T £ #932,870,000/8 7T * F+
1E3E54.58% °

YA

AEB FENERZABEEEHE T ——
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Year ended 31 December
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185.2 180.6 2.5%
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Operating Costs

The total operating costs increased by HK$8.32 million, or
approximately 21.86%, from HK$38.08 million for the Last Year to
HK$46.41 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The following table shows the total operating costs for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011:

WEBEREEZERERLDT
—E-CFFR

BE-_T——F+_A=1+—HIEFE £%&
B ABR EFERI8,080,0008 T 0 LT+
8,320,000/ 7. £46,410,000/ 7T, * FH1@ 49
21.86%.

BE-—P-——FR-_Z——F+-A=+—A
IFEERERERATIINT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE

2012 2011 % change
——F ZZE——F BHLE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Operating lease expenses LEMEAMAT 11,584,821 9,984,386 16.0%
Depreciation of property, Y BEMEETE
plant and equipment 7,959,800 7,091,127 12.3%
Employee benefit expenses EERFAMAX 9,845,335 7,092,137 38.8%
Utilities NZEE S 1,893,741 1,732,733 9.3%
Other operating expenses HmegERE 15,122,826 12,182,966 24.1%
46,406,523 38,083,349 21.86%
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure NHES  WMBEERRERNLERE

The Group generally finances its daily operations from internally
generated cash flows. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$27.88 million (2011:
approximately HK$16.15 million).

Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-
current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
“equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
plus net debt. The gearing ratio for the year ended 31 December 2012
is 2.32% (2011: Nil. The Group was in net cash position).

Significant Changes to Financial Position

The debtors’ turnover days for the financial year ended 31 December
2012 was 193 days (2011: 147 days).
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For hotel operations, the majority of the customers of the Group pay
by cash upon hotel room checkout. As a result, the trade debtors
balance was immaterial compared with the revenue. The Group expects
the customer payment pattern to be consistent in the future.

For hotel consultancy services, the trade debtors balance was
HKD48,478,635 as of 31 December 2012. During the first quarter of
2013, the Group received subsequent settlement of approximately
HKD11,933,594 from those trade debtors. The remaining trade debtors
balance is expected to be fully settled in 2013 based on the revised
repayment schedule.

For hotel management services, the payment term is quarterly
settlement after the end of every quarter. Approximately 44% of the
outstanding trade debtors balance for the management services as at
31 December 2012 were settled in the first quarter of 2013
subsequently.

In the view that all customers had settled their outstanding trade
receivables partially or substantially during the year 2012 or the first
quarter of 2013 subsequently, the Directors were confidence on the
recoverability of the remaining outstanding trade debtors balances.

Capital Structure

On 12 October 2012, the Company completed the placing of
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$30.6 million.
The convertible notes bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum, payable
annually in arrears. The convertible notes shall mature on the second
anniversary of the date of issue. Assuming the exercise in full of the
conversion rights attaching to the convertible notes at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.85 (subject to adjustment) per share, an
aggregate of 36,000,000 shares will be issued, representing
approximately 20% of the existing issued share capital of the Company
and approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the issue of the conversion shares. Save for the issue
of the convertible notes, there was no material change in the capital
structure of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The total number of the issued shares of the Company was
180,000,001 as at 31 December 2012.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group considers that fluctuations in exchange rates do not impose
a significant risk to the Group since the Group’s operations are
principally in the PRC and Hong Kong, and majority of the assets and
liabilities of the Group were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no significant
exposure under foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps
or other financial derivatives.
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Significant Investment

On 17 October 2012, the Group entered into a non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”) with a vendor pursuant
to which the Group intended to purchase 100% of the issued share
capital of Spacial Interior Design Company Limited which is principally
engaged in the business of interior decoration and design. The
consideration of this possible acquisition is approximately HK$60
million. Pursuant to the MOU, in consideration of the exclusivity period
of six months given after the date of MOU, the Group paid HK$10
million deposit to the vendor on 17 October 2012. Pursuant to the
board meeting held on 21 February 2013, the Group decided not to
proceed with the acquisition and the deposit has been collected by
the Group in March 20183. Except for this possible acquisition, there
was no significant investment made by the Group during the year (2011:
HK$12 million).

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

For the year ended 31 December 2012, there were no material
acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by
the Group.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 128 (2011: 100) employees as at 31 December 2012.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Remuneration
Committee, with reference to their respective contribution of time, effort
and expertise on the Company’s matters.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2012.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to
receive any dividends during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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OUTLOOK

Notwithstanding the credit crisis in Europe cannot be extinguished
and the recovery of economy of the United States of America is still in
doubt, the global economic prospect seemed to be much less
optimistic, all these factors may interfere the pace of economy growth
of the PRC, however, exactly due to the global economy step into the
stage of recession, the domestic demands of budget boutique hotels
are huge due to the customers become more cost conservative,
rendering an opportunity for the Group to sustain remarkable growth
in this year. The Group remains optimistic towards the Group’s
development and the prospects of the budget hotel business in the
domestic PRC market.

In the future, the Group shall continue to expand the number of leased-
and-operated hotels, and is also actively seeking for investment and
engaging in asset-light and cost effective business opportunities in
providing hotel consultancy services, as well as providing hotel
management services with a view to grow its brand recognition and
revenues to create value for the shareholders. The Directors believe
that our two segments can be the two-prong growth engine which will
help to strengthen the Group’s market positioning and revenues without
requiring substantial capital expenditures or incurring significant costs.

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The following is a summary of the actual progress of the Group
compared with the business objectives set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”) for the period from
1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012 (the “Review Period”).

Continue to expand the Group’s leased-and-operated
hotel portfolio with focus on the Southern PRC

Business objectives
for the Review Period

Actual operation progress up to
31 December 2012

— Commencing conversion of
the Heyuan Hotel

— The Group has changed the location of
the 6th leased-and-operated hotel
from Heyuan to Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC,
which is expected to commence
operation in the second
half of 2013

— Commencing operation of
the Fujian Hotel

— The Fujian Hotel has commenced
operation since November 2011
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Continue to expand the hotel consultancy business

Business objectives
for the Review Period

— Entering into two hotel
consultancy agreements

— Participating in tradeshows,

exhibitions and special
public relation activities
to identify potential hotel
investors

Actual operation progress up to
31 December 2012

— The Group has entered into 20 hotel
consultancy agreements during the
Review Period

— The Group has joined several
exhibitions in the PRC and contacted
few potential hotel investors

Expand the business by offering hotel management

services

Business objectives
for the Review Period

— Entering into two hotel
management agreements

Actual operation progress up to
31 December 2012

— The Group had set up a new office in
the PRC which focus the hotel
management services. The Group
entered two hotel management
agreements in 2012

Continue to enhance the awareness of the brand name

Business objectives
for the Review Period

— Launching marketing
campaign

— Upgrading the internet
booking system and
the front desk booking
system

Actual operation progress up to
31 December 2012

— The Group has established a marketing
department in October 2011 and set
a marketing plan, including
promotions and advertising

— The Group has improved the internet
booking system and the front desk
booking system in November 2011

i Bl R %lfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

—=——5F88% 1/
B B RN JE B K
BE-%--F
+ZB=1+—-HI1HW
COEPENERKEE BREKEE
—AUMMBEER —ASEREBESBL
ik 20178 /5 AR a2

—2HRHE RE —AKECZ2NTEZE

RREEHAFREE EB#He WHEET
RS AE D BEEEREEET
RBERESE )

TE)E 77% TE/L\/@J;% HE@Z%
Bz-E--%
+tZA=+—HLH

EEAENELEE BRELEE

— AT MR BE — AEBERHERI K

EE SR - SRRME
BEEBRY - A5E
E/\\\:g_ ¢ER ;:Jﬁ{)]
HEE R

RENERENMEE
Bz-E--%
+ZA=+—HLEH

EEAENELEE BREKEE

— RETEREES — AREER-F 4

+ AR T R
U EHERETE - B5F

BEHEERES
— RABELEEIZGER —AEBER S —F
RIZTEE RS +— RIRFA M8 ETER]
ZRRIIBEIZR

S




LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
1 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Management discussion and analysis

B Mo

Business objectives
for the Review Period

Actual operation progress up to
31 December 2012

— Number of members increased
compared 31 December 2011

— Promoting the membership
programme

— Improving design quality — The Group has expanded its design
team to improve the hotel design
quality and the floor plan design

process.

Continue to expand the Group’s ¥ P B ER =
leased-and-operated hotel portfolio REREASEHE
with focus on the Southern PRC 4R JE SE S Y b B

Continue to expand the SERERBEBREES
hotel consultancy business

Expand the business by offering BEROB 5 B 18 AR 75 5 75
hotel management services

Continue to enhance the awareness of FE IR MR A E

the brand name
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased
to present this corporate governance report for the year ended
31 December 2012. This report highlights the key corporate
governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to ensure a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes
considerable effort to maintain high level of business ethics and
corporate governance practices.

The Company has complied with the code provisions in the code of
corporate governance practice (the “Code of Corporate Governance”)
and corporate governance report (the “Corporate Governance Report”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rule throughout the
year. The Board of the Company will keep reviewing and updating
such practices from time to time to ensure compliance with legal and
commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Group. At the same time, it
also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate
governance practices of the Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board
committees, namely audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the
Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted Rules 5.48 to Rules 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings. There was a sale of shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) by Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus Joannes
(“Mr. De Weyer”), who is the non-executive director of the Company,
on 11 April 2012 which constituted dealing in shares within the “black-
out period” by a director of the Company contrary to Rule 5.56 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has an established system whereby
the directors of the Company are required to first notify the chairman
of the Board in writing and receive a dated written acknowledgement
from the Chairman, before dealing in the Shares. The Company also
maintains a written record of the notifications and acknowledgements
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. However, the sale of Shares
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by Mr. De Weyer had not been first notified in writing to the Chairman
and no written acknowledgement had been issued by the Chairman
to Mr. De Weyer. Mr. De Weyer has stated that the sale of Shares on
11 April 2012 was a complete administrative over-sight on his part
and that he notified the Company upon realizing the mistake.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors, save for the
aforesaid, the Directors of the Company had complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct for directors’ securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises seven members as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Fong, Man Kelvin (Chairman)
Ms. Fong, Nga Peggy (appointed on 28 December 2012)

Non-executive Director
Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus Joannes

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny
Mr. Tsoi, Wing Sum
Dr. Wong, Hak Kun Jerry
Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie
(appointed on 28 December 2012)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
31 to 34.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board
is accountable to shareholders for the strategic development of the
Group with the goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value, while
balancing broader stakeholder interests.

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis. Apart from the regular
board meetings of the year, the Board also meets on other occasions
when a Board-level decision on a particular matter is required. All
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Directors are provided with details of agenda items for decisions making
with reasonable notice. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
that the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board
on compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access to
independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their
obligations as Directors of the Company, at the expense of the
Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records
S0 as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and
financial position of the Group through quarterly, half yearly and annual
results announcements as well as the publication of timely
announcements of other matters as prescribed by the relevant rules
and regulations.

The Company has four independent non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Each of the independent non-
executive Director has made an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated to
ensure a clear division between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage
the Company’s business. The separation ensures a balance of power
and authority so that power is not concentrated in any one individual.
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Mr. Fong Man, Kelvin as a Chairman of the Group, plays a leading role
and is responsible for effective running of the Board and responsibility
of overall management, business development and implementation of
the Group’s strategy determined by the Board in achieving its overall
commercial objectives. Mr. William Wong resigned as the chief
executive officer of the Group since 31 March 2012, the Company is
in process of identifying suitable candidate with appropriate experience
as its chief executive officer. The Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority of the Board. It
currently comprises two Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director (the “NED”) and four independent Non-Executive Directors
(the “INED(s)”), with INEDs representing 57% of the Board, which is
higher than the Best Practices. Such a high percentage of INEDs in
the Board could ensure their views carry significant weight and it reflects
a strong independent element in the composition of the Board. At
present, the Board also believe that under the leadership of Mr. Fong
Man, Kelvin as the Chairman, the Board’s decision could be made
effectively and it is beneficial to the management and development of
the Group’s businesses.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the period under review.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, all the non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three year commencing from appointment subject to termination
in certain circumstance as stimulated in the relevant service contracts.
At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (of if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. Any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to the existing
board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’

ATTENDANCE

Regular board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and approving

the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
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Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings and EEFEECeH  EXZE99H  FTMZE
Nomination Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December E&@#NIEREESS@# pﬂﬁiﬁﬁ’\\\?ﬁ :
2012 is set out in the following table:
Remuneration Nomination
Audit Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
EZEE 883 ENZEeg YMzE8EE REZEEE
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attencance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of
meetings held) meetings held) meetings held) meetings held)
(HENE/ (LExE/ (HERE (HENE/
BRENE) ) eRBNE) )
Executive Directors HTEZE
Mr. Fong, Man Kelvin FXkE 8/8 N/A T @R N/A T @R N/A T @R
Mr. Wong, William B EE?&E 212 N/A i A N/A i A N/A i
(redesignated to non-executive (R=Z-—%=A=t-HAftA
Director on 31 March 2012) FHITES)
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy RERR+ N/A TR N/A TR N/A TR N/A TR
(appointed on 28 December 2012) (RZF-—F+-A=+\BEZ{)
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus Joannes ~ EifE(C %4 8/8 N/A R A 11 0/1
Mr. Wong, William BRREE 4/6 N/A T 1/1 0/
(redesignated from executive (RZF-——4=A=1—HE§
Director on 31 March 2012 and BOESHAL
resigned on 28 December 2012) —ZE+ZAZ+\REHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHTEE
Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny EERLE 7/8 4/4 11 11
Mr. Tsoi, Wing Sum BEKEE 8/8 474 1/1 1/1
Dr. Wong, Hak Kun Jerry ERgET 8/8 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie BRELE N/A T EF N/A TN @R N/A T @R N/A TN @R

(appointed on 28 December 2012)

(RZB-_F+-A-T/\BEZE)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was set up on 22 June 2011 to oversee
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management.

The remuneration committee comprises one non-executive Director
and four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. De Weyer
Daniel Ludovicus Joannes, Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum, Dr. Wong Hak Kun
Jerry and Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny and is chaired by Mr. Wong, Sui
Chi, Frankie.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned
with the provisions set out in the Code of Corporate Governance . The
role of the Remuneration Committee is to recommend to the Board a
framework for remunerating the Directors and key executives and to
determine specific remuneration packages for them. They are provided
with sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration committee which
have been revised effective on 28 March 2012 to comply with the new
requirements set out in the revised code provisions are posted on the
GEM website and the Company’s website.

In 2012 the Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company, and determined the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 10 (b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual
remuneration of the member of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000

Z £ £ 1,000,000/ 7T

—E2——FAAZ+ZHBK
NERPEEELSHEEE 2 HFHBER LR

FMEREEH —RIFNTESERERE I
TERAN - BEMECEE  ERKREE &
nHB LT LERERALE  TREAFERBAE -

FMERE e s BEREEMCEEATAIMESZ
EXHRT—2 - FTHEEEZACAREER
ETRTRABZHFMERAESSREREZ -
VEEREZFEFMES - REERAQBE
HERERABITHEE -

PR E S EHBERECKERT AN
T-"F=-A-TN\BER  NETERRSE
b R AR R T8 2 B RT ST RIS Pt 2
HRTE °

R-ZF——F  FWHERESEAARBHFHIK

RERBETERNYNESSREEZS A8

m%%&mﬁ&%‘ﬁ/\ B2HMES - FRAES
Mz FFBEN A P IMRME10()

BEAN - RBEFRIGEXBAS. BEZZT——F+
“A=tTHLEFEEAEREBAEXMNZ
FRF I EREIM T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board is empowered under the Company’s articles of association
to appoint any person as a director to fill a casual vacancy on or as an
additional member of the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed
to the Board for consideration and the selection criteria are based on
the assessment of their professional qualifications and experience,
character and integrity.
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The Company has established a nomination committee on 22 June
2011 for making recommendations to the Board on appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Directors. The terms of
reference of the nomination committee are aligned with the provisions
set out in the Code of Corporate Governance.

The nomination committee comprises one non-executive Director and
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. De Weyer Daniel
Ludovicus Joannes, Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum, Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry and
Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny and is chaired by Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie

The written terms of reference of the nomination committee which have
been revised effective on 28 March 2012 to comply with the new
requirements set out in the revised code provisions are posted on the
GEM website and the Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 22 June 2011
with written terms of reference that set out the authorities and duties
of the Audit Committee adopted by the Board. The audit committee
comprises the four independent non-executive Directors and headed
by Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie who has appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in financial matters. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are aligned with the provisions set out in the
Code of Corporate Governance. The audit committee performs,
amongst others, the following functions:

° ensure that co-operation is given by the Company’s management
to the external auditors where applicable;

o review the Group’s quarterly, half yearly and annual results
announcements and the financial statements prior to their
recommendations to the Board for approval; and

° review the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control
system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, which was of the opinion that such reports were prepared
in accordance with the applicable accounting standard and
requirements. The Audit Committee has also discussed with the
Group’s independent auditors and considers the system of the internal
control of the Group to be effective and that the Group had adopted
the necessary control mechanisms to its financial, operational, statutory
compliance and risk management functions.
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The written terms of reference of the audit committee which have been
revised effective on 28 March 2012 to comply with the new requirement
set out in the revised code provision are posted on the GEM website
and the Company’s website.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The audit committee reviews the adequacy of the Company’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management policies and systems established by the management of
the Company (collectively “internal controls”).

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and
is fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls
within the Group to safeguard the interests of the Company’s
shareholders and the Group’s assets, and to manage risks. The Board
also acknowledges that no cost effective internal control system will
preclude all errors and irregularities. A system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such
non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,320,000 to the external auditor.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standard are selected and applied consistently.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam Tik Lun (“Mr. Kam”), the Company Secretary, is accessible by
all Directors for advice and services with a view of ensuring that Board
procedures are followed. He assists the Chairman of the Board and its
committees in preparing agendas for meetings and in preparing and
disseminating Board papers to the Directors and Board Committee
members in a timely and comprehensive manner. The Company
Secretary is also directly responsible for the overall corporate
governance and compliance with the continuing obligations of the GEM
Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and the SFO, including timely
dissemination of announcements and information relating to the Group
to the market and ensuring that proper notification of Directors’ dealings
in securities of the Group is made. Mr. Kam'’s qualification has been
set out under the section “Directors and Senior Management
Biographies”

As at 31 December 2012, a written confirmation had been received by
the Company from Mr. Kam to confirm he took not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year under reviewed. The
Company is of the view that Mr. Kam complies with Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rule.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.legendstrategy.com) has provided an effective communication
platform to the public and the shareholders.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in courses relating to roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director or further enhancement of
their professional development by the way of attending training courses
or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided the Company
their training records for the year under review. The Directors and
officers are indemnified under a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
against any liability incurred by them in discharge of their duties while
holding office as the Directors and officers of the Company. The
Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there is any fraud,
breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for demanding a poll has
been included in circulars accompanying notice convening a general
meeting and such procedure has been read out by the chairman of
the general meeting. The annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company are primary forum for communication
between the Company and its shareholders. The Company shall
provide shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s)
proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules. The information provided shall be reasonably
necessary to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on
the proposed resolution(s). At Annual General Meeting in 2012 a
separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of directors.

At the annual general meeting held on 10 May 2012 (the “2012 AGM”),
the executive director and Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the
audit, remuneration and nomination committees and representatives
from the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, were
present to attend to questions from shareholders. There were two
general meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
the attendances of the Directors are set out below:
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General Meeting

RRAE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Fong, Man Kelvin (Chairman) AXRE (£RE) 1/2
Mr. Wong, William (Chief Executive Officer) BRENE (TTHEH) 1/2

(redesignated to non-executive Director on 31 March 2012) (RZB——F=RA=T—HRAEAIFEHTES)

Ms. Fong, Nga Peggy (appointed on 28 December 2012) BRERLT(RZE—ZF+ZA=TN\BEZHF) N/A i@ B
Non-executive director: FHITEE :
Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus Joannes BECKE 2/2
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTESE .
Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny EEHLE 2/2
Mr. Tsoi, Wing Sum BAREE 2/2
Dr. Wong, Hak Kun Jerry ErnHET 1/2
Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie (appointed on 28 December 2012) BBt E(RZE—ZF+Z AT \BEZMA) N/A i@



Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. Due to other unavoidable business
engagement, one independent non-executive director and one non-
executive director were unable to attend the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting held on 27 December 2012. However, at the said
meeting, there were non-executive Director and more than half of
independent non-executive Directors present to enable the Board to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders of
the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are laid down in Article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting
unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for
election as a Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given, and a notice in
writing signed by such person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office. The
minimum length of the period during which such notices are given
shall be at least seven (7) days and the period for lodgement of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the attention
of company secretary, by email: alankam@legendstrategy.com, fax: (852)
3563 5830, or mail to Room 1303, Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus
of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure
an effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests.
The senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining,
enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and
quality.

BRIEAARDRAEEN
e

EABRRERABRZEBR/AAREETNRTEH
SIRA R RIEMEZAAIFESSH - BEEMA
T HFRZALTRITHERBRRAE ERENES
SN ABREEMBRRAS LEZERES @ K
HZIANLTREZEMEEIRAREF SR

RELREN—BRR LFERZBIESRAL)
Mﬁ% REMNEEBNES  BEBALNA
BHEBANRABERIRME EﬁLﬂm

RARNFHEMRERREMER o 1R B A& B
PBEARDPREDR @ REGEANNWHHRERE
%EﬁﬁxﬁﬁgmﬁiﬁéLféﬁﬁA P BRBRERA

SRITAMATLORER - RERERREES
MEFFBRAR T%J%JH'J%%

AESSELEANEF

BRERAIBEBU T ARG EEERZRL AT
(FHRARAWEARKHEAN) : BEBE
alankam@legendstrategy.com + 3k {8 H £ (852)
3563 5830 ' Sk ZF £ &8 & FIEMBABESIR A
FAXE1303E °

BRI

ARRRIRAIER EHRAREER - RIRIE
BRERNERARREHTNERERLAE -
ARBENEREFHEER - ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ’&
%R BEERTE  BRERR REER
NREEME S EAMBERE -

CE

// 1\\

ARRRERFNEEERAIRIERZAN
DENRERRER - SREREREBRN
MERE IR RRAARREZ CXERKTRE
% o



B REEE

BAERA
= —

FER

Biographical details of directors and senior management

==
B

EERSHEREY EES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fong, Man Kelvin (5 X), aged 50, is the chairman of the
Company and was appointed as an executive Director on 23 February
2011. He is responsible for the daily operation of the Group and overall
strategic planning and management of the Group. He is also actively
involved in designing hotels, including both the leased-and-operated
hotels and hotels under the hotel consultancy agreements, for
developing the Group’s business. Mr. Fong holds the degree of bachelor
of arts in architecture from the University of Lincoln, the degree of
master of science in architecture from the University College London
and the degree of master of business administration from the University
of Sheffield in the United Kingdom. Mr. Fong also obtained his
postgraduate diploma in architecture from the University College
London in the United Kingdom. Mr. Fong is the spouse of Ms. Wong
Pit Lai Vera, the marketing manager of the Group and the brother of
Ms. Fong, Nga Peggy, the executive director.

Mr. Wong, William (Z1&3&), aged 41, (formerly named “Mr. Wong,
Hiu Fan William (ZEB1)”), was the chief executive officer of the
Company until 31 March 2012. He was appointed as an executive
Director on 23 February 2011 and redesignated to non-executive
Director on 31 March 2012. He was responsible for daily operation of
the Group, investor relations and overseeing the corporate development
of the Group. He also plays an important role in identifying strategic
partners and developing the Group’s business. He obtained the
bachelor of science in finance from the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Wong resigned as non-executive Director on 28 December 2012.

Ms. Fong, Nga Peggy (2 £ [H), aged 48, was appointed as an
executive director on 28 December 2012, is a sister of Mr. Fong Man,
Kelvin, the Chairman of the Board and an executive director of the
Company. She was awarded a bachelor's degree of arts (honours) in
Accountancy by The University of Kent at Canterbury, the United
Kingdom. Ms. Fong is a certified public accountant of lllinois, the United
States of America. Ms. Fong has over 18 years of finance and
accounting experience, working with international accounting firm.
From 2000 to 2006, she was appointed as the financial controller of
Office Maintenance Service Co. Ltd, a company engaged in engineering
and construction business and she was responsible for financial and
corporate management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus Joannes (& #1=), aged 57, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 22 June 2011. Mr. De Weyer
obtained his diploma for the academic degree of licentiate in applied
economics at the Universitaire Faculteiten Sint-Ignatius Antwerpen in
Antwerp, Belgium and the dealing certificate from International Capital
Markets Association foundation, Montreux, Switzerland. Mr. De Weyer
worked for a premier European Bankassurance group with assignments
in Bahrain, Los Angeles and New York. He has also worked in various
positions for an industry owned cooperative SWIFT Asia-Pacific where
he held positions including Regional Head of sales, Senior Manager
Market infrastructures and Partner Relations, and currently Global Client
Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny (EE 8), aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 22 June 2011. Mr. Tam was
awarded the post-experience certificate in accountancy from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University . Mr. Tam is a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and an associate of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Currently Mr. Tam is a sole practitioner
of YATA, a certified public accounting firm. Mr. Tam is an independent
non-executive director of Inner Mongolia Yitai Coal Company Limited,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and China 3D Digital
Entertainment Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Dr. Wong, Hak Kun Jerry (E 5 £)), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 22 June 2011. Dr. Wong
obtained his master of business administration in international
management from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia
and doctorate in business administration from the Bulacan State
University in the Republic of the Philippines. Dr. Wong also holds a
bachelor’s degree in theology from the Alliance Bible Seminary and a
master’s degree of Christian Ministry from the Alliance Bible Seminary.
Dr. Wong has also been the chairman of Happy Tree Social Services,
a charity organisation, which aims at providing social services to the
disadvantaged minorities over the world.
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Mr. Tsoi, Wing Sum (2% %), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 22 June 2011. Mr. Tsoi obtained
his bachelor’s degree in pharmacy from the University of the State of
New York. He also obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of London. He currently works in
AstraZeneca Hong Kong Limited, a multi-national pharmaceutical
company and now serves as an associate sales manager.

Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie (Z i #), aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 December 2012. Mr. Wong
was awarded a bachelor's degree in Accountancy by the City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Frankie Wong has over 15 years of finance
and accounting experience, including but not limited to, financial
management, corporate management and auditing, serving in
international accounting firm, manufacturing and retailing companies,
listed property development company, securities and futures brokerage
company and shipping company. He is currently the financial controller
of Shine Vision Investments Limited, a company engaged in wholesale
and retailing of eyewear products in the People's Republic of China
and the South-east Asia, who is responsible for planning and directing
the finance and accounting functions, providing financial analysis and
budgets to the management and other corporate administrative
functions.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. He An Ying (fil &%), aged 44, is the administrative manager
and human resources manager of the Group. Ms. He joined the Group
in December 2005 and is responsible for overseeing the application of
various licences required for the operation of the Group, liaising with
the relevant government authorities for inspection, purchasing of
materials for the operation of the Group’s hotels. Ms. He completed
the ISO 9001: 2000 Internal Quality Auditor Course organised by i
= EEFEB AR A A (Kaugdaxin Management Consulting Company
Limited*)

Mr. Zhang Guo Xing (& Bl £), aged 34, is the finance manager of
the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2007 and is responsible
for overseeing the finance department of the Group. Mr. Zhang studied
industrial management and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
from Hunan University in the PRC. He also obtained a qualification
certificate of Speciality and Technology in Accounting of intermediate
level issued by 12 A REFEI A E EF (Ministry of Personnel®).
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Ms. Li Yu Zhen (ZE®), aged 50, is a senior district manager of the
Group. Ms. Li joined the Group in January 2006 and is responsible for
supervision of hotel operation, hotel room sales and customer relations.
Ms. Li obtained several awards in the hotel industry, including the
Advanced Worker Award (Jt3 T{E#) by the aforesaid companies,
for her outstanding performance.

Ms. Wong Pit Lai Vera (£4 &), aged 41, was appointed as the
marketing manager of the Group in June 2011. Ms. Wong joined the
Group since February 2011 as the director of Yuelai Inn. Ms. Wong
obtained her bachelor degree in clothing from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and her master of science degree in management (business)
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is the spouse of Mr. Fong
Man, Kelvin, the chairman of the Company.

Ms. Yeung Yin Mei (¥ #&1E), aged 37, was appointed as financial
controller on April 2012. She is responsible for the financial
management for the Group. Ms Yeung graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, Faculty of Professional Accountancy, she
also obtained a master degree in corporate governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, and a postgraduate diploma in investment
management from the HKU School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms Yeung is a current member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Secretaries. Ms
Yeung has almost 15 years of financial management experience in
different Hong Kong enterprises as well as multinational corporations.
Her expertise includes financial budgeting and analysis, capital
management, taxation and internal cost control.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam, Tik Lun (£ f&), aged 37, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 14 March 2011. Mr. Kam is responsible
for the company secretarial functions of the Group. Mr. Kam is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kam
obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce from the Concordia
University, Canada, a postgraduate diploma in international corporate
and financial law from the University of Wolverhampton, United
Kingdom and a master of laws in international corporate and financial
law from the University of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. Mr. Kam
is an independent non-executive director of China 3D Digital
Entertainment Limited and Unlimited Creativity Holdings Limited, both
companies are listed on GEM board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company, and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in operating budget hip hotels
and providing hotel consultancy services in the PRC. There was no
significant change in its activities during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 46 of this
annual report.

The directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at
31 December 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account plus
retained earnings, amounted to approximately HK$84.99 million.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in the equity
on page 113 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers can be catergorised into two types, namely
hotel guests and hotel investors under the hotel consultancy.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 63.8% (2011:
54.4%) of the total sales and the Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 16.3% (2011: 28.7%) of total sales.

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable
amenities, cleaning products and laundry services. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group'’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 86.8% (2011: 78.45%) of the
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 30.7% (2011: 28.9%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the financial year
ended 31 December 2012.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans as at 31 December
2012 (2011: Nil). Details of borrowings of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group had capitalised interest of HK$54,324 during the year ended
31 December 2012.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December
2012 is set out on page 132 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Fong, Man Kelvin (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, William (Chief Executive Officer)
(redesignated to non-executive Director on 31 March 2012)

Ms. Fong, Nga Peggy (appointed on 28 December 2012)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus Joannes

Mr. Wong, William
(redesignated from executive Director on 31 March 2012
and resigned on 28 December 2012

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny

Mr. Tsoi, Wing Sum

Dr. Wong, Hak Kun Jerry

Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie (appointed on 28 December 2012)

Mr. Wong William has resigned as a non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 28 December 2012 due to pursue his other
career opportunities. Mr. Wong William has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and he is not aware of any matter
regarding his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company. The Board would like to express its
sincere gratitude to Mr. Wong William for his valuable contributions to
the Company during his tenure of office.

The terms of office of each director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 31 to 34 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No director or controlling shareholder had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tam, Kwok Ming Banny, Mr. Tsoi, Wing Sum,
Mr. Wong, Sui Chi Frankie and Dr. Wong, Hak Kun Jerry, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-
executive directors remained independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the Directors
in the shares (“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Capacity
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Percentage of

Number of shares shareholding

Mr. Fong, Man Kelvin (Note 1)
T3 X Se A (FEE)

Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus Joannes (Note 2)

BECELE (HiE2)

514

Beneficial Owner

EmEAA

Beneficial Owner

BEamlAA

g 4= BETDL
102,576,466 56.99%
10,382,655 5.77%

Notes:

1. Ms. Wong Pit Lai, Vera is the spouse of Mr. Fong. Therefore, Ms. Wong
Pit Lai Vera is deemed to be interested in the 102,576,466 shares in
which Mr. Fong is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

2. Ms. Makoto Nishimura is the spouse of Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus
Joannes. Therefore, Ms. Makoto Nishimura is deemed to be interested
in the 10,382,655 shares in which Mr. De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus
Joannes is interested for the purpose of the SFO.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, there were no debt
securities issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed herein,
as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their associates had any interests and short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which each of them has taken or deemed
to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
referred to therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2012, so far as is known to the
Directors, the following persons, not being Directors or chief executive
of the Company had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member
of the Group:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Capacity
54

Mr. Qiu Dai Lun (Note 1)

BB Am & (B aE 1) EmEAA
Note:
1. Ms. Cheng Xiaomin is the spouse of Mr. Qiu Dai Lun. Therefore, Ms.

Cheng Xiaomin is deemed to be interested in the 10,800,000 shares in
which Mr. Qiu Dai Lun is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Beneficial Owner
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, there were no debt
securities issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed above,
as at 31 December 2012, the Directors are not aware of any other
person, other than the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
who had, or was deemed to have, interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group or options in respect of such share capital.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the directors are not aware of
any business or interest of the directors, the management of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the business of the
Group and any other conflict of interest which any such person has or
may have with the Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 128 employees.
Remunerations of the Group’s employees are determined in accordance
with the terms of government policies and by reference to market level
and the performance, qualifications and experience of employees.
Discretionary bonuses are paid to few employees as recognition of
and reward for their contribution to the corporate development. Other
benefits include contributions to retirement schemes, medical schemes,
unemployment insurance schemes and housing allowances.

thEEpB EERRERA D
—E-—EEH

REBEE_T——F+_A=1+—HLFE =&
SEREAREEYERITENERES - KL
XHBEBEEN R_TE——F+_-_A=+—
A B2V TNEEIMEMAL GEARFE
ENFEBITHRABIN RSB D P HEE
R BEBRBERS AR GHIEXVEE2
N3 EIEX BRI AN A R BB AR BOA R ¢ 3K
BEEERHEEENREUETMBER TRAS
E (T EK B AR MBRRE A EIZ R EF)
EOAE AT 48 Bl AR AR B TR B AR A 5% 8 A £ HYFE RS
S8 kA R A R BE AR A o

IS EEL

BT —_FF+_A=t—HLFE E=F
BMIANMEES AR EHEERKES B
BAL (EERAER ETHRA) 2 EREHHK
Rm EARBHEB LR KA LRBF - T
THBEMZFEA LD BRI REREE LR
TR E MR -

BE BRXLEES

ARBEEEMHBARNAFELEBE
BEHERRRMER EHES ©

RNBFRE

BREBEARRASHORFEER  UREZERA
HBETNER < REBRATAYMAA - ARF]
ERERIZFR EMANERS TR ZARFR

=
= °

& 8 K3 B R

R-F-——F+-_A=+—8 AKEHEE
128% &8 - NEE(E 8 HF M IRIEBUFBER (&
RE2EMHEKFERBRE BEMERE
E B EE IR EEEA - URBRERE
ﬂ“ﬂ%@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ H At 48 M B FE R K
FHEl - BEF B RKRERRETEHFAREE
ERE -

N

S




LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
42 ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Report of the Directors
EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under reviewed.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules which are subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

At 31 December 2012, except for the agreement entered into between
the Company and Quam Capital Limited, the Company’s compliance
adviser on 27 June 2011, neither the Company’s compliance adviser
nor its directors, employees or associates had any interest in the share
capital of the Company or any member of the Group (including options
or rights to subscribe for such securities) as notified by the Company’s
compliance adviser.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on
22 June 2011 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on 22 June
2011. The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained
through their efforts and contributions.

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
adoption of the Scheme, the principal terms of which were summarized
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).
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Exercise As at
price 31 December
per share 2011

Exercisable
period

Category

Date of grant

during the

REARY i

WEBEREEZERERLDT
—E-CFFR

Number of share options
BREHA
Options
exercised
during the
period

Options
granted

Options
lapsed
during the
period

Options
cancelled Asat
during the 31 December
period 2012
i
- 7 - $
t=28
Er=f

period

REnE s
XM
BhE

RERER

NiKE BhRE NEKE

Employees 21 February 2012 21 February 2012 to 1.33 - 900,000 - - - 900,000
20 February 2014

8 i S ECf

:ﬂir A ZA=t-A%
ZE-pE
ZAZtA
- 900,000 - - - 900,000
PENSION SCHEMES RIRETE

As of 31 December 2012, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years (2011: nil)

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers and a resolution for the
re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. PricewaterhouseCoopers was
the auditor of the Company since 13 July 2010.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON
WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company
at www.legendstrategy.com.

By order of the Board

Fong Man, Kelvin
Chairman

12 March 2013
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Independent auditor’s report
J& N 1% B R S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LEGEND STRATEGY
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 46 to 131, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 March 2013
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
RETHENER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—BLEFE

Revenue e 5 91,155,199 69,592,354
Operating lease expenses EERNAY (11,584,821) (9,984,386)
Depreciation of property, W - BENEETE

plant and equipment 14 (7,959,800) (7,091,127)
Employee benefit expenses EERAMMAXZ 7 (9,845,335) (7,092,137)
Utilities NEESi (1,893,741) (1,732,733)
Other operating expenses H i &ERE 6 (15,122,826)  (12,182,966)
Operating profit EERA 44,748,676 31,509,005
Finance income & WA 76,231 60,539
Finance cost b & B AN (1,077,099) (204,312)
Finance cost — net BB A — JFEE 8 (1,000,868) (143,773)
Share of results of DR ERZE I EEEE

jointly controlled entities (20,870) (2,513,199)
Profit before income tax RR P18 B A& R 43,726,938 28,852,033
Income tax expense B 1S i 2 9 (10,855,270) (7,587,350)
Profit for the year F R F 32,871,668 21,264,683
Other comprehensive income: Hf4rEW A :
Currency translation differences & ¥5[E 5 =58 249,923 562,711
Fair value changes on AHHESREE

available-for-sale financial assets A F1{E 2 & &) 178,000 =

Total comprehensive income FRZ:ESWALE

for the year 33,299,591 21,827,394
Profit attributable to: THALEERF :
Equity holders of the Company ~ ARQBIERFEAH A 32,871,668 21,264,683

Total comprehensive income % A LtE{L4ES WAL :
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company ~ ANAR#EmFE A 33,299,591 21,827,394
Earnings per share for profit FAARABIERFTFREA
attributable to the equity FEAG % ) B B Az & )

holders of the Company

during the year

— Basic (Hong Kong cents) — EAR B 11 18.26 13.63
— Diluted (Hong Kong cents) — 5% OB 1) 11 17.97 13.63

The notes on pages 54 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ $54%F 131 B K £ A4 A B SRR B
financial statements. B



WEBEREEZERERA A
—z-—&58 4/

Consolidated statement of financial position
iRE MBI R

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE N 14 36,746,467 28,994,945
Prepayment and deposits AR RERIEZS 18 24,450,000 5,000,000
Rental deposits HEZS 15 1,497,017 1,212,228
Prepaid operating lease TEEERLY 17 10,998,264 11,722,821
Interests in jointly RERZEHEE 2 En
controlled entities 18 19,492,931 9,503,801
Deferred income tax assets RIEFMEHEE 27 1,452,223 1,788,265
94,636,902 58,222,060
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 R EH BRI 15 52,481,410 32,773,728
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S B & E 16 1,162,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 19 27,880,476 16,150,556
81,523,886 48,924,284
Total assets BEAE 176,160,788 107,146,344
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves AQAAEZEEA
attributable to the equity BEERE FE
holders of the Company
Share capital & 75 20 1,800,001 1,800,001
Reserves et 22 117,265,004 83,741,413
Total equity B 119,065,005 85,541,414
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Consolidated statement of financial position
iRE MBI R

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

LIABILITIES a8&
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Provision for asset retirement WMEEEEREE 23 3,457,087 3,278,455
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE 24 889,153 1,301,638
Convertible notes — debt AR RE — EEILD
component 26 29,405,000 —
33,751,240 4,580,093
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables FEN B 5 R E AR 25 9,064,789 8,217,551
Amount due to a director Bt EE I8 34 - 582,031
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAasE 13,035,449 7,836,051
Finance lease liabilities mEHEARE 24 412,305 389,204
Financial derivatives SRMOTET A 26 832,000 =
23,344,543 17,024,837
Total liabilities BERHE 57,095,783 21,604,930
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEESE 176,160,788 107,146,344
Net current assets BRBEE 58,179,343 31,899,447
Total assets less EEABERRBERE
current liabilities 152,816,245 90,121,507

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 131 were R F46E 131 BMGEMBEHRERER —F —

approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2013 and were signed =F=A+_-_BES=<i /& IH (=S
on its behalf. REEE -
Fong, Man Kelvin Fong, Nga Peggy
X TEHR
Director Director

EF EFE
The notes on pages 54 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 2554% 131 B A i A AL & B 75 3R % A9 48 AK
financial statements. o o



WEBEREEZERERA A
—z——=x8% 49

Statement of financial position
BA 15 R 3%

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R—ERBARZI’RE 28 37,507,647 37,507,647
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H fth jE k08 15 794,902 1,758,689
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEU B A T ZIE 28 29,152,653 =
Available-for-sale financial assets Rt HE S G & E 16 1,162,000 =
31,109,555 1,758,689
Total assets EEHE 68,617,202 39,266,336
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves AAFAEZEEA
attributable to the equity EhEERE #E
holders of the Company
Share capital % A 20 1,800,001 1,800,001
Reserves L] 22 35,767,301 36,821,435
Total equity s 37,567,302 38,621,436
LIABILITIES a8&
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible notes — debt AR EE — EEBD
component 26 29,405,000 —
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Statement of financial position
BA 15 R 3%

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

Current liabilities REBERE
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT — M B QR IR 28 636,900 636,900
Accruals fEETIEH 25 176,000 8,000
Financial derivatives ERMITAET A 26 832,000 =
1,644,900 644,900
Total liabilities EE8E 31,049,900 644,900
Total equity and liabilities EakaERRE 68,617,202 39,266,336
Net current assets BRBEE 29,464,655 1,113,789
Total assets less EELAERRBAERE
current liabilities 66,972,302 38,621,436

The financial statements on pages 46 to 131 were approved by the  F46E131HEHMIMBREER T —=F= 7
Board of Directors on 12 March 2013 and were signed on its behalf. +THEESTeHE YATHESRESE
=.

Fong, Man Kelvin Fong, Nga Peggy

X REH
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 54 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

HI— A4
1> / ~ ll\l:lln %}J %

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—BLEFE

/\\/ \

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

AREEEEE ARG

Share
capital

RA

(Note 20)
)
HK$
BT

Share
premium
B 47 518
(Note 22)
(Fi5E22)

HK$
BT

Reserves
fittE
(Note 22)
(FizE22)
HK$
BT

Balance at 1 January 2011 R-B-——%-A—-H&H = — 15285116 15,285,116
Profit for the year F N A - — 21,264,683 21,264,683
Other comprehensive income: HAiRE WA
Currency translation differences EWER =5 — — 562,711 562,711
Total comprehensive income FERGAWAAE
for the year - — 21,827,394 21,827,394
Total contributions by and BEENEZRAN
distributions to owners of AAREBEALELSE
the company recognised % {5 2R
directly in equity
Share swap pursuant to RIFEEEMAGBRRG
group reorganisation 1,350,001 — 8,598,659 9,948,660
Issuance of shares upon placing, R ERFEITRG
net of share issuing expenses (HERKRHETER) 450,000 38,030,244 — 38,480,244
1,800,001 38,030,244 8,598,659 48,428,904
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-ZE——%F
+-A=t-A&8 1,800,001 38,030,244 45711,169 85,541,414
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-ZEBE—Z—F—A—H&RH 1,800,001 38,030,244 45,711,169 85,541,414
Profit for the year F N A - — 32,871,668 32,871,668
Other comprehensive income: Ei\f@,T\AJMUK
Currency translation differences EHE R =% - - 249,923 249,923
Fair value changes on AftHESREE
available-for-sale financial assets NEEES - — 178,000 178,000
Total comprehensive income FREARAEE
for the year - — 33,200,591 33,209,501
Total contributions by and EEREREAN
distributions to owners of AABREBEALELSE
the company recognised RELDIK
directly in equity
Employee share option benefit E & B xiER T - - 224,000 224,000
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E—Z-F
+t-A=+—B#&#% 1,800,001 38,030,244 79,234,760 119,065,005
The notes on pages 54 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated FH4F 131 BEHMIE ARG S B RHE M AER

financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

,\\/ N fﬁi )L B2 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—BLEFE

Cash flows from RETHEENRESRE
operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) mEELE(FTR) /M

operations B 30 34,065,763 (2,010,402)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEXHEBFIEH (1,709,007) (491,660)
PRC income tax paid EXHRBMER (3,600,364) (3,794,394)
Net cash generated from/(used in) & & EEEL / (FrA) &Y

operating activities ReF5E 28,756,392 (6,296,456)
Cash flows from RETHEENREESRE

investing activities

Purchase of property, BEWE  BERRK

plant and equipment (15,509,830) (10,933,888)
Increase in loan to jointly R T HEREHERE 2

controlled entities ,\,Ty\i* hn (10,010,000)  (12,017,000)
Increase in prepayment for W BERZEZ

property, plant and equipment TE AT FRIEE N (9,450,000) (5,000,000)
Increase in deposit WX LS

for an acquisition of business 12 50 (10,000,000) —
Interest received B W F & 3,713 580
Increase in available-for-sale At E S & E LN

financial assets (984,000) —

Net cash used in investing activities 1% & & 2) Fff FI IR & )% 58 (45,950,117)  (27,950,308)
Cash flows from METHEENRESRE

financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of 317 A[ R [RE 5 ATS KA

convertible notes FER 26 29,682,000 —
Capital injection to a subsidiary B [A—RME QAT E

by shareholders - 9,990,000
Proceeds from issuance of R EBEITRD 2

shares upon placing, Fr 1S #E

net of share issuing expenses (0B W5 1T ZRH) - 38,480,244
Net inception of BEHEAEFRE

finance lease liabilities - 1,636,471
Repayment of BEMHEA B2 ENKIEA

finance lease liabilities (470,388) —
Interest paid for convertible notes B AJ IR T & 2 S (335,000) —

Net cash generated from BB EBFTS IR )55
financing activities 28,876,612 50,106,715




BB EBIERERADF
—=——FF#% 53

Net increase in cash and BHERREESEYIEMFEE
cash equivalents 11,682,887 15,859,951

Cash and cash equivalents at FYNREeRREEEY
beginning of the year 16,150,556 263,590

Exchange gains on cash and Re KB ZEBYE LK
cash equivalents 47,033 27,015

Cash and cash equivalents at FRNBERBESEEY
end of the year 19 27,880,476 16,150,556

The notes on pages 54 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 2554% 131 B Ml it A A 4R & B 75 R R A9 48K
financial statements. o o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
‘e B ISR M EE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23
February 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 15 July 2011.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the budget hotel operations
and provision of hotel consultancy services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial
derivatives, which are carried at fair value.

ARE

B ERERAERAR (ARRD R
—E——FZAZt+=HREFASHESQ
AVEAE2R2E (—HAAR—FE=FEH - &
fra RIER]) ER S SR MA L SRR
RERETEAR - RAFMPFEEMIS
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands °

ARBBEMNR—FE——FLATHEARE
BHARSMAERQFARIER LT -

ARRR—EREERAR - HMBATE
TERPEARIME ([FE])RKELE
AR R 5 B AR OB 5 B AR o

BIERBFHN - BRIAREFBERERIGN
BILE - NEEPBHRRENR T —=
FZAT_BEEFSHETIE -

N\

TE23

28

TR R

pull}

2.1 IRMRIEE

B SR AV BRREAERAZ
EREHBRREIDOT - BRIFERE
FHHSN - ZERFH BRI B0
ERRABIRZEE °

ARRZHEEHBHRRIREETE
SR AR 2 FBMHERELE
AREBESE AT RERE - AAF
BEARNAHELEEENRERITAE
TRAEEHMGEEM T IAER] -
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEAHEHRE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE (&)
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements BESTEBUBRELENNGE
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical MBmEFEFERE THRSFE
accounting estimates. It also requires management to H RANFEZEEECRALNSH
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the SRR BREPITERHE - EF
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher WREEHE B EE - Y
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where HEVBmEMEBEATE LK
assumptions and estimates are significant to the BRHE - EMEARHEEE o
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
(a)  New, revised and amended standards and (a) R-IE—_—FHEUMZHEEF
interpretations to existing standards effective in R FTET ~ ASMEET RAZ1E
2012 BRI R 2 FE
The Group has adopted the following amended REEBRMTHIEM|HER
standards that have been issued and are effective for B-Z——-—A—H&H%
the financial periods commencing on 1 January 2012: 2 B ER R A R 2 s B
Al
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: BEMBEHRE I :
(Amendment) Disclosures, on transfer AR 75 HiEDH
of financial assets (& 5T 4) BENHEE
HKFRS 1 First time adoption, BERMBME BHRERA -
(Amendment) on hyperinflation and AR FE 155 BRA=EME
fixed dates (BET ) BER R
K [EE BHA
HKAS 12 Income taxes, on deferred BEBGTER ST
(Amendment) tax F125% BEEL

(EFTA) BiIA

The adoption of the amended standards did not have FLANEE RT RO ZE BI 30 48 39 & A
material effect on how the results and financial SRS HAERR R 25
positions for the current or prior accounting periods XERVBERRERERNT
have been prepared and presented. 2 o
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEWME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE (&

ERME K ERZ HEE
ERZFET ~ BEET RAEE
BRI 2 FE

THHIREER Z5E] - &8
FIREIEREA REZEE B
e BBR T —=F—A—
H sk 2 1% B84 2 B Bk A R o )
A BAEEYEEREFIR

pull}

(b)  New, revised and amended standards and (b)
interpretations to existing standards that have been
published but are not yet effective

The following new, revised and amended standards
and interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but the Group
has not early adopted them:

Fo
Amendment to Financial statements BELETEL MB®WED
HKAS 1 presentation regarding F158 2% - B
other comprehensive (IEETA) Hibira
income! WA
Amendment to Employee benefits? BB g EL EERF?
HKAS 19 E195%
CCHEY)
HKAS 27 Separate financial BB G EL BB RR?
(revised 2011) statements? FE2THR
(Z2—%F
AZET)
HKAS 28 Associates and BEETER BEQARR
(revised 2011) joint ventures? 285K BENFA?
(Z2——%
KAZET)
Amendment to Financial instruments: BEETER S@MITA :
HKAS 32 Presentation on asset F325% HEAZ5
and liability offsetting® CCHEN) BEIRERE
2 5He
Amendment to First time adoption, BENBWE BRERA -
HKFRS 1 on government loans? AR 157 B BT
(CCHEN) B2
Amendment to Financial instruments: BENBRE SBMIA:
HKFRS 7 Disclosures on asset AR E 757 HREER
and liability offsetting? (CCHEN) BREZEH?
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments? BBV BRE eI A
A= R 5957
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9  Mandatory effective date EARMBHRE REIEREH

(Amendments)

and transition disclosures*

BRFETHRE  SORERE

BEUB
HEER
F95%

CHEN)



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(®)

New, revised and amended standards and
interpretations to existing standards that have been
published but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial

statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
other entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement?

Amendment to HKFRSs  Transition guidance?
10, 11 and 12

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping costs in
the production phase of

a surface mine?

Annual improvements
2011

Annual improvements in
the 2009-2011 financial
reporting cycle?

Note:

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after
1 July 2012

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

8 Effective for financial periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015

WERBREEZERERAF
“E-CFFR

N

THEBRE @

S A
2 FEg

pull}

2.1 RMUEE (&

=

(b) EBEMEREKRENERE
CERZ FTET © ASIEET RAE(E

CNER R 2 FE (FE)

BERUBRE SKEVBIRR
B 1057

BB ®E HRZHER
AEBIZE 1157

EEYBRE HERHAM
ERIE1257 BB R

EBYBRE QAFEA22
AR5 1357

BB BEES?
wmEZER
£105%

BB
s A A
F115R K
BB
wmEZER
£1258

(BRTA)

B8 (BB BARESEE
G P& B 2 K %
RELZET) KA
— %E
F205%

—FT——% ZTTNEFER
kg —ZT——F

S IRE

AH 7 FE

B2
fE -

T RE——Ft+A—HZzE
16 2 B BR HA RS AE Rk

2 R-E—=F—A—HB%z#
716 2 B R A R AE 3R

8 RZE—NF—A—Hzz&
F16 2 B B HR A K

¢ RZE—RF—A—HBHzzE
B A 2 B AR A
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEWME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ik

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE (&
(b)  New, revised and amended standards and (b) BEEMEFKRENZEHEE

interpretations to existing standards that have been
published but are not yet effective (Continued)

The Group will apply these new, revised and amended
standards and interpretations to existing standards
in the period of initial application. The Group has
assessed the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 10
and concluded that the adoption of this new standard
does not have a material impact of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the adoption of the
other new, revised and amended standards and
interpretations to existing standards and is not yet in
a position to state whether they would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. The Group
also assesses existence of control where it does not
have more than 50% of the voting power but is able
to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where
it does not have more than 50% of the voting power
but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control.

ERZFET ~ BEET RAEE
ERI R 2 FE ()

REE R E RN IR A
A EHIRE LR 2] - g
R RAEIERER R - A%
B RHERMB AU HIRELE
AIE10 2 & - WHETEXHT
RN RMB R R B A B
BRETGELEATE - K
SR ERHA SR EL M 3R
BRI ZFE] - KT &
BER - R HE  ERA
MAREZFERTEEHE
REZE PRI EKER

B 48R
& o

W B E M 1R R A2 BB
HELERIREE (BRI BHR
EREBREY) mBREBEENS
HAREELEATE -

2.2 B A F
2.2.1 &HERHE

B8 A Bl E H A S B A AR AR
HU B RS EB RN EER
(BREEFRZER) - —RKRH
A BUR AR AR o TR
EAREEETES S —HE
- @EERKELFEAT
ERA IR BE IR R E
FE - MAKREERNREH
THBB50%IE BE LA B 2
REYE I 75 R AR B R -
SETEHERAITHIE -

B BT R 1R
TAZBE0%ERESA B E RS
e BRI BAT B TR MO
T -
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEWME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 B ATR (#)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2.148060KH (&)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries

M A BN E TR BB AR E
Bz BEEZEA G - WNE
KPR A RREZ LS G -

SEARFRNRS - #&

WA RSN AEEIE T R A
HERZRTREHE  NEE
RERH R RER BELDN
A R BB IT T LAS 5 o KIS

have been changed where necessary to ensure ARG BE D RTEED
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. W - DARRREAR SR EERA R
BETBUR—B -
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 B HIFEHRE

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

A B A B Z IR E TH AR AR
BWENTTDEAR - RATNEHE
BRERGZERER - AQF]
P B A B 2 F AR IR A B M
WK IEARR

% B KB A RIFTEE /RS
BRME A NIKEHEN 2
FEUR A 4B 58 B S B 5 3k A
R1% & IR BB BN GRS I 7%
MR EHRHNEETFE (B
E8) RmEE - AIEWERE
AR A PSR SRR At
TEEITRERAS °
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Interests in jointly controlled entities

The Group recognises its investment in jointly controlled
entities under the equity method of accounting where
interests in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition of profits or losses and movements in
other comprehensive income in the profit or loss and in
other comprehensive income respectively. When the
Group’s share of losses in jointly controlled entities equals
or exceeds its interests in the jointly controlled entities
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entities), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the jointly controlled entities.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of
the Group'’s interest in the jointly controlled entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (the “CODM”). The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Group’s executive directors who make strategic
decisions.

2

N

2.3

2.4

FTESHHEHRE @
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HERNEBEESENELEERNZHE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

@

(®)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currency of the Company in 2011 was
Renminbi (“RMB”). During the year, upon issuance of
convertible notes (Note 26), the functional currency
of the Company has been changed from RMB to
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) since the Company has
changed its activities from a sole investment holding
company to a company which is also engaged in
treasury functions in Hong Kong. The change of
functional currency which is made due to change in
underlying events and conditions as mentioned above
is accounted for prospectively. The consolidated
financial statements is presented in HK$.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
profit or loss, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
cost-net’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the income statement within ‘other
operating expenses’.

2

N
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2

- TR A
T=T

STHRBE

2.5 JNEBRE )

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued) (b) RFZRiE#H(E)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities LASNES B et B A 548 A ] gt
denominated in foreign currency classified as ERHFEBBLF s ATEE
available-for-sale are analysed between translation BT BFCH A EES
differences resulting from changes in the amortised ZIEH E R AR E < H
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying thEBREITON - B ERE
amount of the security. Translation differences related EIBRRRAER - MEMRE
to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit Bz EBRIEEMERE BAF
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are R o

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial FEBeMEERERAR
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value (WA FEFEEINARER
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss Ko CEHEERER
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation i’%lﬁﬁ@ RN T ERE S EE
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such 28y o EEESREE (I
as equities classified as available-for-sale, are ﬁ*x‘EZ%TL\Hﬂ%Z%ﬁn)ZE
included in other comprehensive income. HERBGAREMEERS /AR °

(c) Group companies (c) HHARFA]

The results and financial position of all the group Tae B2 5| BT RIAET
entities (none of which has the currency of a EEEEE (UERSREL
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional EHR A E ) B SEE RIS
currency different from the presentation currency are i - m R BRERET
translated into the presentation currency as follows: Bk

— assets and liabilities for each statement of

— BYBRRARAZIIH

financial position presented are translated at the BERBEBERZV BN
closing rate at the date of that statement of JLER 25 B /U T E X
financial position; £
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEWME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.5 INEBE (&)

(c)  Group companies (Continued)

— income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

) ZEENAGE)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated

using straight-line method to allocate their costs, less their

residual values, if any, over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and 7 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The asset’s useful lives and residual values are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvement
stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Cost includes the costs of leasehold improvement and
interest charges arising from borrowings used to finance
these assets during the period of construction. No provision
for depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and are
available for intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated in the preceding paragraphs.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGIHHEME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 2.8 IFERMEEMNRE

2.9

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade debtors”,
“deposits”, “rental deposits” and “cash and
cash equivalents” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2
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2.9.1 Classification (Continued) 2.9.1 74 (&)
(o)  Available-for-sale financial assets () FAIHEESREE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non- AHENEREESR

derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement
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Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets CBEENTHBARLER
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which RE5BER  RHAELAEE

the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
income statement as ‘gains and losses from
investment securities’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@

Loans and receivables (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(®)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the profit or loss on equity instruments
are not reversed through the profit or loss. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the profit or loss.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors are amounts due from customers for services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade debtors and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

N

+

g &=

T BERBE @

213 NIREEEBY

RekReFEVERTFEREN
RITBAFK -

2.14 Bg A

BRRDERED - BITHREE
P E RGO TERAE RS
S R PSSR MR D (FNERTIR) ©

2.15 BN B 5 M H A AR X

BNESHALTERBXHEERES
) e 7 P B 7 m Sk RIS O N R E
T HENESREMERE —F
E—FURRHEER - AIEER
IEREEBYN) - MDBRABA
B BAl EIRRBDARTES -

PN B 5 R EL AR B LA A T E
WER - L1 FI PR E IR SR IR 5
WA E -

2.16 fEE KA

ERBBRWE EEREESE
REE (BUAKE—BRREREE N
FEFRERGRHENEE) W —K
EEEBERAN  MAZFEEN
KAR BEEEEAM EHEZHEE
BERGHHERL °

IHERE REFAEREEN
XM ERERERRORERA
EEREMEMMMBERAFN

A A A B A B AR
3570 R ©



8 e S AR R PR 2
—=——55H /1

m!|>

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHHEME @

2.17 RI AR R IR

2.17Convertible notes

The Company issued Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
denominated convertible notes (the “convertible notes”)
which can be converted into ordinary shares of the
Company and redeemed under certain circumstances. If
the conversion of the convertible notes will not result in
delivering a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments in exchange for a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset, the convertible notes contract will
be separated into two component elements: a financial
derivative component consisting of the embedded options
and a debt component consisting of the straight debt
element of the convertible notes.

On the issue of the convertible notes, the fair value of the
financial derivatives component is calculated using a
valuation technique. The financial derivative component is
carried at fair value on the consolidated statement of
financial position with any subsequent changes in fair value
being charged or credited to the profit or loss in the period
when the change occurs. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to debt component of the convertible notes,
net of transaction costs, and is recorded as a liability. The
debt component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate to the debt
component through the maturity date.

If the convertible notes are converted, the carrying amounts
of the corresponding financial derivative and debt
components are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
convertible notes are redeemed, any difference between
the amount paid and the carrying amounts of the
corresponding financial derivative and debt components is
recognised in the profit or loss.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEWME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ik

2.17Convertible notes (Continued) 217 AR iR (&)

An exchange between the Company and lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, shall be recognised in the profit or loss.

If the exchange or modification is not constituted as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred shall be
accounted for as adjustments to the carrying amount of
the liability and being amortised over the remaining term of
the modified liability.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

@

(®)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the group companies operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension schemes.
The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered
funds. The Group has defined contribution plans in
the PRC and Hong Kong.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

@

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.20Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save).
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEWME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ik

2.20Share-based payments (Continued) 2.20 AR D BEME 2 N FK (&)

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

2.21Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the services rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below.

(@)  Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from hotel room and conference room
rental is recognised when the services are rendered.

(b)  Provision of hotel consultancy services

Revenue in respect of provision of hotel consultancy
service is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the end of the
reporting period. The stage of completion of each
transaction is determined based on the proportion of
costs incurred at the end of the reporting period
compared to the estimated total costs of the
transaction. The outcome of a transaction can be
estimated reliably when (a) the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably; (b) it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group; (c) the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date can be measured
reliably and (d) the costs incurred for the transaction
and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

pull}

2.22Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 WS R ()

(c) Hotel management income (c) BEEERA
Hotel management income from operating a hotel is EEREEENDEERRA
recognised when the services are rendered. IR AR 75 e 1R o

(d)  Membership fee income ) ZHEEHRKA
The fair value of the consideration received or PR ERREN AT ERS
receivable is recognised on a straight-line basis over ERFHRNEREREER
the life of the membership. iR o

(e)  Rental income on sub-leased hotel premise (6) JBIES YA KA
Rental income in respect of rental of a sub-leased BRBEESHEYENES KA
hotel premise is recognised on a straight-line basis M10FHE AR E R AW
over a lease period of 10 years. A o

() Interest income f  FLEMKA

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan and receivables are recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

M SWAR B BB R AR
L P R XERERR - i B R FE
WHRIEHIRRE - AEEEE
FREER 2= H A e o eE - B
Bk TEMRERAEFRL
EEIARKBSRE - LHEER
PR E W FER R SUA -
EREERRERFIRNFE
WA RERA REER




i Bl R %la‘i RERDE

—z——g5% /9

m?

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEWME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2283 B P BB Eq &

2.23Customer loyalty programmes

The Group operates a loyalty programme where customers
accumulate points to exchange free nights staying in the
hotels operated by the Group. Sale of hotel rooms that
result in membership points are accounted for as a
separately identifiable component of the sales transaction(s)
in which they are granted or sold (the “initial sale”). The fair
value of the consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the components, i.e.
the hotel rooms sold and the membership points granted.
The fair value of the membership points is estimated by
reference to the benefits (i.e. free extra night for staying)
that the customer would obtain when redeeming the
membership points and the expected future redemption
rate. The estimate on expected redemption rate is based
on statistical analysis of past customer behaviour. The
Group reviews the loyalty programme on a regular basis,
unused and expired membership points would be removed
from the programme. Revenue from the membership points
is deferred and is recognised when the points are redeemed
and the amount of revenue is recognised based on the
number of points redeemed relative to the total number
expected to be redeemed.

2.24 eases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.24| eases (Continued) 224 HE #)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant
and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

2.25Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents, trade debtors, deposits and
other receivables. Management has policies in place
and exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of hotel operations, the Group has no
concentration of credit risk in view of its large number
of customers. It has policies in place to ensure that
sale of rooms to corporate customers are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. Sales
to walk-in customers are made via credit cards or
cash.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of provision of hotel consultancy services,
the Group has a concentration of credit risk in view
of that all the trade debtors arose from 5 customers
(2011: 7 customers). The Group requests progress
payments from customers in accordance with the
milestones of the hotel consultancy agreements.

Cash and bank deposits are mainly placed in major
domestic banks with good credit ratings. Rental
deposits are mainly paid to six domestic private
entities who are currently leasing the hotel premises
to the Group. Other receivables primarily represent
the amounts due from parties which have long
business relationship with the Group. Given majority
of the other receivables were settled subsequent to
year end, management does not consider there is
recoverability issue.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through issuance of convertible
notes. As at 31 December 2012, the Group held cash
and cash equivalents of HK$27,880,476 (2011:
HK$16,150,556) (Note 19) and trade receivables of
HK$48,276,139 (2011: HK$28,048,035) (Note 15)
that are expected to readily generate cash inflows
for managing liquidity risk.

To manage the liquidity risk, management monitors
rolling forecasts of cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flow. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally
generated cash flows from operations, equity funding
or advances from shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBERERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEREZ &)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FTEELER(E)
The following table details the remaining contractual TREFMANER ZINTE S
maturities at the date of statement of financial position E\fiﬁ/\%ﬁ Az Fgra # 5 H
of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which BN IREHRTIRIBE R
is based on contractual undiscounted cash flows = (REFERFINFEN (B
(including interest payments computed using FR)EEHZBRITNERGE
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current ZRBE ) RAREEEAS
at the date of statement of financial position) and the ZHEEBENRABFE

earliest date the Group is required to pay:

Within Between Between
1 year or 1and 2 and More than
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
-EZ@ME WEERLE BREF
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Group by |
At 31 December 2012 RZB-—#+-A=t-H
Trade and other payables B 5 Rt B 78 5,272,967 - - - 5,272,967
Finance lease liabilties BEMEARE 470,208 408,664 535,347 - 1414219
Convertible notes — debt ~ FHRERE — &
component x5 1,530,000 35,462,460 - - 36,992,460
Provision for ﬁ?@ﬁ PR
reinstatement cost B - - - 4,000,809 4,000,809

7,213,175 35,871,124 535,347 4,000,809 47,680,455

At 31 December 2011 R-Z——%+-A=1-H

Trade and other payables ~ ZHREMERTE 3,880,192 - - - 3880,192
Finance lease liabilities BEREER 470,208 470,208 944,011 = 1,884,427
Amount due to a director ~ [EREZFA 582,031 = = = 582,031
Provision for EEERRA

reinstatement cost bt - - - 4,000,809 4,000,809

4,932,431 470,208 944,011 4,000,809 10,347,459

Company KAF
At 31 December 2012 R-Z-—%#+-A=+-H
Amount due to a subsidiary  FEff— P B2 7ZUA 636,900 - - - 636,900
Accruals [E:rEA 176,000 - - - 176,000
Convertible notes — debt AR ZE — &&
component %) 1,530,000 35,462,460 - - 36,992,460
2,342,000 35,462,460 - - 37,805,360
At 31 December 2011 R=Z2-——-%+-A=+-H
Amount due to a subsidiary & —RH B A A FA 636,900 - - - 636,900
Accruals [EitBH 8,000 = = = 8,000
644,900 = = = 644,900
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3

s REkE R @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B%EREAZE @)

(c)  Foreign exchange risk (c) SMEERE
The Group operates mainly in the PRC and HK. AEEEBTRPEREBLE
Transactions, assets and liabilities denominated in X% ER5  BERAER
currencies other than the functional currency of the DEAESR B A RIM I se B’ ET
group companies are minimal and therefore B EEEERFINER
management considers the foreign exchange risk is AR o
minimal.

(d) Interest rate risk (d) FIEE [
The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets BRETRITFR - TRREE
and liabilities except for certain bank deposits, LRt EHEEBRIN - AEEL
convertible notes and finance lease obligations. The BEAGEEEREE MK
Group’s income and operating cash flows are SENRARKCERSRER
substantially independent of changes in market REBD TR TS| BB
interest rates. Management considers the interest rate 2 - MRNIRITTHERZFERE
risk is minimal since the interest income from bank EEATRRERERBEHER
deposits is insignificant and the interest rate for i’%E’ﬁ'JT’EIET'JT’ BIEE
convertible notes and finance lease obligations is REN R EBRIR
fixed.

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BXREKEIR

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders, to support the Group’s stability and growth;
to earn a margin commensurate with the level of business
and market risks in the Group’s operation and to maintain
a net cash position.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or dispose of assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-
current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2011, was to maintain the gearing ratio of less than
20%. The BB credit rating has been maintained throughout
the period. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2012 and
2011 were as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 24 and 26) & & # %58 (Hf:F24 K 26)
Less: cash and cash equivalents B R RBRESEEY

i B %l?%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ
—z=——F&% 85

s REkE R @)

32§$ﬂAﬁﬁﬁ%

REER T ——FEEMRIE
—f——imﬂ mhéﬁﬁﬁm
FRFFIE20%IA T o MEE(EHAR A -

AEBNERAFTR— Eﬁ%%&%
2 ERZE——HF+ZA=
T—HEHEEE B ENT ¢

30,706,458 1,690,842

(Note 19) (Ft5E19) (27,880,476)  (16,150,556)
Net debt/(cash) aEFE/ (R 2,825,982 (14,459,714)
Total equity e AR 119,065,005 85,541,414
Total capital BT 121,890,987 71,081,700
Gearing ratio BEAGBLHX 2.32% N/AZ i A
Fair value estimation N EGEE

The different levels of valuation method have been defined
as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 ERER @

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 RA¥{EME (@)

The following table presents the Group’s and the Company’s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2012.

TRENAEERAA AR =T~
—F+=A=+—ARATEHE
ZAERAM :

Assets BE

Available-for-sale e

financial assets ERMEE

— Equity securities — BAESH 1,162,000 - — 1,162,000
Total assets EERRE 1,162,000 - — 1,162,000
Current liabilities mEAasE

Financial derivatives SMHUTETE - 832,000 832,000
Total liabilities BERRE - 832,000 832,000

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the date of
statement of financial position. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
the listed equity investments on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

As described in Note 26, the Company’s convertible notes
contain a number of embedded financial derivatives that
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
Company engaged an independent valuer to assist it in
determining the fair value of these embedded financial
derivatives. The determination of fair value was made after
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to: bond yields, risk free rate and expected volatility
of comparable corporate bonds and the financial capability
of the Group to redeem the convertible notes. The fair value
determined was based on generally accepted valuation
procedures and practices that rely extensively on the use
of numerous assumptions and the consideration of many
uncertainties, not all of which can be easily quantified or
ascertained.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group has significant amount of property, plant and
equipment. The Group is required to estimate the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to ascertain
the amount of depreciation charges for each reporting
period.

Useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase of these
assets after considering business developments and the
Group’s strategies. The Group performs annual reviews to
assess the appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
Such review takes into account any unexpected adverse
changes in circumstances or events, including declines in
projected operating results and negative industry or
economic trends. The Group extends or shortens the useful
lives and/or makes impairment provisions according to the
results of the review.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may be not recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on fair
value less costs to sell calculations or market valuations.
These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
affect the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group’s financial position and
results of the operations.

Asset retirement obligations

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis,
the present value of the obligations which arise from future
reinstatement of leased hotel premises upon end of lease
terms. To establish the present value of the asset retirement
obligations, estimates and judgement are applied in
determining these future cash flows and the discount rate.
Management estimates the future cash flows based on
certain assumptions, such as the restoration costs based
on quotations.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Leasehold improvements on leased premises

The Group operates hotels on leased premises in the PRC
and incurs construction or renovation expenditures for these
hotels. A landlord named in a lease agreement has been
unable to produce proper building ownership certificate or
to provide valid lease permit or other necessary
permissions. However, based on the Group’s experiences
and available information and after consultation with the
legal adviser, the Directors are of the view that such problem
is unlikely to cause any interruption or termination of this
lease or to have a material effect on the carrying amounts
of the related leasehold improvements of HK$1,880,490
(2011: HK$3,018,658) as at 31 December 2012. Moreover,
the controlling shareholder of the Company has agreed to
keep the Group indemnified for any losses that the Group
may suffer from any failure of the Group’s subsidiary in
obtaining license or permit to use the related property.
Accordingly, no impairment for such leasehold
improvements is considered necessary to be made
according to the Group’s accounting policies.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current income tax and deferred income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 [E#Heit{hst LA @

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()  Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 2.22,
the Group uses the percentage of completion method to
determine the appropriate revenues to be recognised from
provision of hotel consultancy services. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of estimated total costs of completion. When
the outcome of the transaction cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable to be recoverable.

(g) Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, derivatives arising from
convertible notes) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The CODM has been identified collectively as the executive
directors of the Company. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The CODM has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

Management regularly reviews the operating results from a service
category perspective. The reportable operating segments derive
their revenue primarily from the hotel operations and provision of
hotel consultancy services. The sales of hotel membership cards,
hotel management services income and rental income on a sub-
leased premise are included in the hotel operation segment.

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of operating profit but exclude
certain unallocated listing expenses.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2012

BE-_Z——F
+ZA=+—HLEE

Hotel
operations

EIEEE
HK$
BT

Provision

of hotel
consultancy
services
RAHEIE

&8 5 PR A%
HK$

BT

Segment revenue 2 EBUA 32,969,007 58,186,192 91,155,199
Segment results DEBPELE 7,419,938 37,328,738 44,748,676
Depreciation of property, Y - BENMERETE

plant and equipment 7,359,590 600,210 7,959,800
Amortisation of prepaid TE 1 4 i 70 49 55

operating lease 850,590 - 850,590
Provision for impairment of 2 SRR AR S

trade debtors — 1,500,000 1,500,000
For the year ended BHE-Z——F

31 December 2011 +TZA=+—BLEE
Segment revenue 2 EBULA 27,392,060 42,200,294 69,592,354
Segment results DEBFELE 2,631,691 31,185,086 33,816,777
Depreciation of property, M BERZETE

plant and equipment 6,878,615 212,512 7,091,127
Amortisation of prepaid TE 1 4% 8 70 40 5H

operating lease 212,647 — 212,647
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

A reconciliation of segment results to profit before income tax is
provided as follows:

7 BP S48 BARR P S AR A4t A 9 B BR 351 40

Segment results D EBFEE 44,748,676 33,816,777
Unallocated listing expenses ROBH EMRAX - (2,307,772)
Finance income BE WA 76,231 60,539
Finance cost A& A (1,077,099) (204,312)
Share of results of DR EEIES BB L

jointly controlled entities (20,870) (2,513,199)
Profit before income tax & B 15 54 Bl & A 43,726,938 28,852,033

All revenue was derived from external customers in the PRC and
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
Revenue of HK$57,203,556 (2011: HK$28,648,535) is derived
from five (2011: two) external customers for the year ended 31
December 2012. The revenue is attributable to the provision of
hotel consultancy services.

The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets
located in Hong Kong and the PRC were HK$13,956,495 (201 1:
HK$4,675,080) and HK$79,228,184 (2011: HK$51,758,715),
respectively.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Breakdown of revenue from all activities is as follows:

o1

i B %l?%ﬁﬁﬂa
—z=——F&% 93

DEBE R (#)
i E B S B ARSI T

Hotel consultancy services B I R R AR 75 58,186,192 42,200,294
Sales from hotel operations — B G E B A —
hotel room rental, hotel management BEEEEE
services income and conference B JE B RIS WA &
room rental eREEE 30,173,403 26,387,781
Rental income on a sub-leased premise 2 YER S WA 2,456,044 611,124
Sales of hotel membership cards HIE S 339,560 393,155
91,155,199 69,592,354

6 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses consisted of the following:

H i £ 8 7 X

FXIERBEATERE

Marketing and promotion MZHEERSEER 1,931,143 814,737
Provision for impairment of trade debtors & 5 B8R ZUR B £ & 1,500,000 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZH AN & 1,320,000 1,000,000
Consumables and laundries SEHFEm M AKX E A 1,131,943 1,439,447
Entertainment XBEME 961,446 636,450
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease T8 15 48 & FH 47 4 £ 850,590 212,647
Sales commission HEMS 633,210 681,378
Property management fee YIEEEE 597,914 598,462
Telephone and communication B MAETER 436,330 295,426
Repairs and maintenance HIERRE 248,804 443,719
Bank charges RITFEE 147,069 361,867
Office supplies 9N = F 137,231 163,748
Listing expenses WX - 2,307,772
Others HAth 5,227,146 3,227,313

15,122,826 12,182,966
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7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 7 EERAFAX (BEEEE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) )

Other benefits H @5 328,214 580,989
Pension obligations (Note) Rk ER (B 1,069,861 1,005,819
Salaries, wages and allowances e TENZERL 8,223,260 5,505,329
Share-based payment expenses ARG (D BER 2 S X 224,000 =
9,845,335 7,092,137
(Note):  Pensions-defined contribution plans Contributions totalling (Mt3E) : RIRS — FE HREHE16 260,356
HK$260,356 (2011: HK$1,672,922) were payable to the fund BT (ZE——%F : 1,672,922/87T)
at the year-end. HERBREREETES -
8 FINANCE COST — NET 8 MEKAN —

Finance income: BEUWA
— Interest income on — R AT E R
non-current rental deposits FEnBHEZRS
carried at amortised cost YN 72,518 59,959
— Bank interest income — RITA B UL A 3,713 580
76,231 60,539
Finance cost: BERAN ¢
— Finance cost on asset — REEEERELEN
retirement obligations A& A A (160,421) (149,941)
— Finance cost on finance lease — REHEEENREKAN
liabilities (81,002) (54,371)
— Finance cost on convertible notes — AR E R R E A (890,000) =
(1,131,423) (204,312)
Less: amount capitalized as construction & : EE KR Lz ERITREE
in progress 54,324 —
(1,077,099) (204,312)
Finance cost — net REERK AN — JFER (1,000,868) (143,773)




BB EBIERERADF
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9 FIEMAX

Current income tax BVERFR 1575
— Hong Kong profits tax — BB ER 5,963,117 4,359,102
— PRC corporate income tax — PR EMER 4,545,651 3,423,971
Deferred income tax (Note 27) BEIEFTISHE (M 5E27) 346,502 (195,723)
10,855,270 7,587,350
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% RAFEEAN - BEMNEGRIETE16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits of the year. (ZZF——%F : 16.5%) BhHETFE RT3 7
TEL B -
The PRC corporate income tax is provided at the rate of 25% RAFEEA - PRI EMERIZTE25%
(2011: 25%) for the year. —T——F : 25%) fEHBHE o
The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs N5 B bR AT 1S B0 Al a1 B 42 2 PTAS B B 8
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the enacted AASEETKE RRIFIEZHREER
tax rate of the home country of the companies comprising the EAE2EREBELEAAT

Group as follows:

Profit before income tax B P15 %1 Bl & A 43,726,938 28,852,033
Tax calculated at domestic tax E5H BB R F %5 B

rates applicable to profits B2 AR R 5T E A IE

in the respective countries 8,757,154 5,794,800
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ A] #1754 B BT 5% 1,425,156 1,377,872
Tax loss not recognised RERNFIAEE 669,516 =
Tax effect of share of results of DEEEEHEBEENTETE

jointly controlled entities 3,444 414,678
Income tax expense F{S Fi 2 10,855,270 7,587,350
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10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of the directors during the year are set

out below:

Year ended 31 December 2012 EZ=-F—-—-F+=f

10 EEH B

(@) Z=HM

FAR-EFZHMEINDT

Salaries,
allowances

and benefits

Fee in kind
e EBR
ENER

HK$

BT

Retirement
benefit
contributions

BREHEH
HK$
BT

=t-BLEE
Executive director: WITES:
Fong, Man Kelvin (Chairman) 7 X (L&) - 820,000 27,000 847,000
Wong William (Note) =R () - 87,356 2,000 89,356
Fong, Nga Peggy (Note) ReR (M) - - - -
Non-executive director: FERTES
De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus HEC
Joannes 86,000 - - 86,000
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
director:
Wong, Sui Chi Frankie (Note) &34 (Bif &%) - - - -
Tam, Kwok Ming Banny EEH 86,000 - - 86,000
Tsoi Wing Sum BER 86,000 - - 86,000
Wong, Hak Kun Jerry "R 86,000 - - 86,000
344,000 907,356 29,000 1,280,356
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10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 EFHMWM @
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@) EEFM @

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefit
inkind  contributions

e RER
ENREH
HK$

BT

Year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=-F——f

TZA=+-BLEEE
Executive director: HITES
Fong, Man Kelvin (Chairman) A X (£/%) = 304,130 8,500 312,630
Wong William R - 236,485 8,500 244,985
Non-executive director: FHTEE
De Weyer, Daniel Ludovicus BELC
Joannes 37,260 — — 37,260
Independent non-executive BUFHNTES
director:
Tam, Kwok Ming Banny ZE8 37,260 — — 37,260
Tsoi Wing Sum BEK 37,260 = = 37,260
Wong, Hak Kun Jerry BEnE 37,260 - - 37,260
149,040 540,615 17,000 706,655
Note: On 28 December 2012, William Wong resigned as Chief iz : RZT—=F+=-A=F+/\H"
Executive. On the same date, Fong, Nga Peggy and Wong, ERRRFETHRAE  RB &
Sui Chi Frankie were appointed as executive director and SERRERBD IEREAERSE
independent non-executive director of the Group, B TEENBY IFRITES -
respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, no director HE—S——F+—-_A=+—8It
received any emolument from the Group as an inducement FE o BB ENANEEWEYER
to join or leave the Group or compensation for loss of office, MEEAMARBERAER S 84
no director waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments SIEEBRMEE  NEEERESN
(2011 Nil). EREREEMAME (ZT——5F :
=) o
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10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) &)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) AEEmEEFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in RAFE  AEEREZHESHFAL
the Group for the year include one (2011: two) director and BE—&ACE—F WMRB)ESE
four (2011: three) senior executives. The emoluments of k& (ZE2E——% : Z8)aRE
the one (2011: two) director are reflected in the analysis BEAL  —R2(ZE—F W
presented above. HEEZMER EXEY 2D
gk o
The emoluments payable to the remaining four (2011: three) BRI (CE——F:=%) = ,i&
individuals during the year are as follows: EREEATHHESRN TEHER

Salaries, wages and allowances e TENER 1,296,096 372,841
Pension obligations BRINEET 143,370 112,696

1,439,466 485,537
The emoluments fell within the following band: NFOTBERNZHME

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7L E1,000,0007% 7T 4 3




11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the equity owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

WEBEREEZERERLDT
“E-CFFR

11 BRER

(@)

=N

SRERRF AL TASHE
B 53 B LA GE PO 2 BT AR
IR -

99

Profit attributable to the equity

RRABHEAE ANEELLF

owners of the Company 32,871,668 21,264,683
Weighted average number of BBTE ARz METHE

ordinary shares in issue 180,000,001 155,958,905
Basic earnings per share BREARZF GBI

(Hong Kong cents) 18.26 13.63
Diluted (b) #%
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the EREE BT RBARRBEING
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding TmARNE T8 - RBRFTA A BE

to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has two categories of dilutive
potential ordinary shares: convertible notes and share
options. The convertible notes are assumed to have been
converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted
to eliminate the interest expenses less the tax effect. For
the share options, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

11

REH )

(b) B8 (®)

Earnings R
Profit attributable to equity holders ~ ANA Bk 1A A

of the Company JE A % 32,871,668 21,264,683
Interest expenses on convertible notes A A% =45 2 F| B 3 H 890,000 —
Profit used to determine diluted RN ESRESRT 25T

earnings per share 33,761,668 21,264,683

R 8 E
BRTE BB MNEFHH

Number of Shares
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue 180,000,001 155,958,905
Adjustments for: BTFNIEE FE

— Assumed conversion of — RRABREREER

convertible notes 7,890,411 —

Weighted average number of EEREERT

ordinary shares for diluted BT INAE T E

earnings per share 187,890,412 155,958,905
Diluted earnings per share Tk E R (BREW)

(HK cents per share) 17.97 13.63

There was no dilutive effect arose from share options on
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2012
since all outstanding share options were anti-dilutive.

12 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately HK$1,456,134 (2011: HK$1,208,809).

13 DIVIDENDS

No dividends had been paid or declared by the Company during
the year (2011: Nil).

12

13
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W% - WE K&E
Group
S|
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor Construction
improvements  and fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress
HEN$%E HRREE BOERE RE EEIR
HK$ HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2011 RZF——F
—A-A
Cost XA 34,654,779 7,530,521 867,260 - — 43,052,560
Accumulated depreciation 2 g (13,685,652) (4,744,218 (410,054) — —  (18,839,924)
Net book amount REFE 20,969,127 2,786,303 457,206 - — 24,212,636
Year ended 31 December 2011 ~ HE-E——%
+-BE=1-FH
ILERE
Opening net book amount ENEAEE 20,969,127 2,786,303 457,206 - — 24,212,636
Additions NE 7,943,675 57,486 86,618 2,846,109 — 10,933,888
Depreciation charge FEBR (5,209,170 (1,504,875) (181,619) (195,469) - (7,091,127)
Exchange differences ERZED 833,096 85,379 17,048 4,025 = 939,548
Reclassification 508 - (20,033) 20,033 = = -
Closing net book amount FREMFE 24,536,728 1,404,260 399,286 2,654,671 — 28,994,945
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F
+-B=1-FH
Cost KA 44,043,126 7,862,527 1,009,799 2,850,346 — 55,765,798
Accumulated depreciation 2ifTE (19,506,398)  (6,458,267) (610,513) (195,675) — (26,770,853
Net book amount REFE 24,536,728 1,404,260 399,286 2,654,671 — 28,994,945
Year ended 31 December 2012~ HE-E——#F
+-A=1+-H
&34
Opening net book amount ENEAFE 24,536,728 1,404,260 399,286 2,654,671 - 28,994,945
Additions NE 193,714 64,577 45,012 - 15,260,852 15,564,155
Depreciation charge HEER (6,291,862) (888,741) (208,781) (570,416) - (7,959,800)
Exchange differences ERER 134,814 8,459 2,338 1,556 - 147,167
Reclassification BNAE - (705) 705 - - -
Closing net book amount FREEFE 18,573,394 587,850 238,560 2,085,811 15,260,852 36,746,467
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F
+-A=1+-H
Cost KA 44,484,874 7,972,215 1,061,332 2,851,960 15,260,852 71,631,233
Accumulated depreciation ZfTE (25,911,480)  (7,384,365) (822,772 (766,149) —  (34,884,766)
Net book amount REFE 18,573,394 587,850 238,560 2,085,811 15,260,852 36,746,467

I
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W% - BEM&RE @)
(Continued)
The Group leases two motor vehicles under non-cancellable AEBBRBTAIHEHEBEHAOEERIT
finance leases (Note 24). The lease terms are between 2 and 5 = (fffzE24) - EINR2ES5F - K& E
years. Motor vehicles include the following amounts where the EREAARBEREANAEN TBRHE
Group is a lessee under finance leases: AT®E

Cost — capitalised finance leases KA —EBEERNEz@MERE 1,905,158 1,905,158
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (429,058) (48,026)
Net book amount BRHEFEE 1,476,100 1,857,132
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 EIWE 5 K EMERR
Company
RAT
2011
HKS
BT
Trade debtors FEUE 5 B8R 3K 49,776,139 28,048,035 - =
Less: e
Provision for impairment of R E ZERFRERE
trade receivables (1,500,000) — - —
48,276,139 = 28,048,035 - —
Prepayments, deposits and BARIE - B R
other receivables H fth [ Y 5178 30,152,288 10,937,921 794,902 1,758,689
78,428,427 38,985,956 794,902 1,758,689
Less: Ve
Rental deposits HEZS (1,497,017)  (1,212,228) - -
Prepayment for property, mE - BENEEZ
plant and equipment SEENE 0] (14,450,000)  (5,000,000) - —
Deposit for an acquisition of business U £ 7% 2 X & (10,000,000) = - =
Current portion REE D 52,481,410 | 32,773,728 794,902 1,758,689
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15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 FEIWE 5 K EMERK @
(Continued)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are analysed as FARFRIE - e REMERGIE Z 5T
follows: ™~
Company
KA T
2011
—T——F
HKS
BT
Deposits 7e
Rental deposits HEES 1,497,017 1,212,228 - =
Deposit for an acquisition WiEER &k
of business (Note) GES 10,000,000 = - =
11,497,017 1,212,228 - —
Prepayments FERIE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE R 14,450,000 5,000,000 - —
Marketing and promotion & AR - 1,563,112 - =
Prepaid operating lease (Note 17)  FEff& &4 (FH5E17) 850,590 850,590 - -
Others Hith 918,684 553,302 - -
Total prepayments BN IR B 16,219,274 7,967,004 - -
Other receivables H A PE W R IE 2,435,997 1,758,689 794,902 1,758,689
Total prepayments, deposits and ~ FER I -~ 124
other receivables R E A fE W GRIB AR TR 30,152,288 10,937,921 794,902 1,758,689
Note: In October 2012, the Company entered into a non-legally binding HsE : ARAIRZTE—Z—F+AFET TR

memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) for acquiring 100% of
the issued share capital of a target company, which is principally
engaged in the business of interior decoration and design. The
consideration for this possible acquisition is approximately HK$60
million. According to the MOU, the Group paid HK$10 million
deposit to the target company. Pursuant to the board meeting
held on 21 February 2013, the Group decided not to proceed
with the acquisition and the deposit has been collected by the

Group in March 2013.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values.

$$@Fﬂ&ﬁ%&ﬁ’r@ﬁ§

%&m%ﬁZ%%ﬁEﬁU%%ﬁE
]) RABBEZWEBEEA
100% &% - BEA TI%{?&%@W%
1EREGTER - Z e ESHE 2 R(E
49 560,000,000/ T ° BIEFEE
£+ A EF B 122 A% 410,000,000
BTRE  cBER-_E—=F_A—-+
—HRAZESESH  A5EFRK
IFEZRBEEEIE - MASEERS
=F= AkEES -

(P E=EE

RNERE

7
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15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 EIWE 5 M EMEREK

(Continued)

The majority of the Group’s revenue from hotel operations are
made via credit cards or cash. Hotel rooms are rented to
corporate customers with an appropriate credit history on credit
terms of 30 days. For hotel consultancy services, the Group offers
credit terms to external customers of 7 days upon acceptance
of services by the customers. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group has made provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$1,500,000 (2011: Nil). Trade receivables of HK$47,257,408
(2011: HK$2,129,389) were past due but not impaired.
Management considered that no recoverability problem on these
trade balances as a result of subsequent settlement received up
to the date of this report and the agreement of the revised
repayment schedule with certain trade debtors. The aging
analysis of these trade debtors is as follows:

AEEMBEEEREEEZUEHERSE
SHE - RNARESBERETEMNEE
EERHE=ZTANEHIEEEEH - 3B
EEERBMS  AREREFPEX RS
BRZERPIRELANEEH - RN
——HF+-fA=1+—8  KEES{EHE
W'E S8R FORE R 1,500,0008 7T (=&
——&F &) - RIWE FERF47,257,408
BT (CZE——4F : 2,129,389% 7T) 2@
HBYERE - BEERA  AREER
s B AR B EER R NEFIERTIE
B SEFEFTENGE  2EEHE
I ERFNE N ERE - ZSERE SR
RZBREDTWT ¢

Neither past due nor impaired 4 %60 HR I RS (B 1,018,731 25,918,646
0-30 days past due BHIOZE 30K 6,457,730 1,411,770
31-60 days past due #HI31 E 60K 6,961,124 647,308
61-90 days past due #HEIG1 £ 90K 4,505,744 3,058
Over 90 days past due B HIFE 90K 29,332,810 67,253
Past due but not impaired 2 38 B I & R E 47,257,408 2,129,389

48,276,139 28,048,035

The credit quality of trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparties’ settlement pattern.

360 T L PO I R RO IS
ZT2EEMBER HUFHBRLEE
% o




15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of
each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

15

RWE 5 K

Enn‘nﬂ“im

o

=
X =]
°

=

=1

i B %l?%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ
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Ha R @)

=15 B A Lt & 58 R YR RO BR
AR B3 54 F R A (T A

BEWE S R EMRRZREEAT
BatE -

Company
b N

2012 2011
—EF-=-F —F——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Reminbi AR 53,146,209 32,006,711 - —
Hong Kong dollars BT 25,282,218 6,979,245 794,902 1,758,689
78,428,427 38,985,956 794,902 1,758,689

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade debtors are BOBRFRERE 2 ZSHUT -

as follows:

At 1 January Rn—A—H - —
Provision for impairment BB B 1,500,000 =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,500,000 =
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15

16

17

ERE R e

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The creation of provision for impaired debtors has been included
in “other operating expenses” in the income statement (Note 6).

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

15 EIWE 5 M EMEREK

BN B ZEFREREBE A A SR T
B TE RS ] (HiEEe) °

e E 5
MEEE -

REMRRZ BRI T EE

RepE BHFTAREZ R REERKR A X
Pl S B R UER R BRE(E - ANEE W&
BEEMERRELEER -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 AIfEEESmEE
Group and Company
AEERAKRRDF
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Additions NE 984,000 —
Net gain transferred to equity (Note 22) B = #Ees ~ Wk F 58 (I 7E22) 178,000 =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,162,000 =

Available-for-sale financial assets represent equity securities listed
in Hong Kong which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

PREPAID OPERATING LEASE

As at 31 December 2012, the balance primarily represented the
non-current portion of the operating lease payment paid to an
independent third party in respect of the rental of a hotel premise
in the PRC for a lease term of 15 years till 30 June 2026.

17

AL ESHEERNES LMANET
FHEZBRAE

BN EEEY
RS- —F1-A=1—A - BHEE

BN EBEEEE (%EHHEJZI_ z
NERNA=ZTHLETRAF)A—RBYL
E??SEH#J?&%%%E%H%XZ?FEH%%B%




i B %l?%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ
—z——x8% 107

18 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED MARIEH B 2 #am
ENTITIES
On 22 December 2011, the Group entered into a Joint Venture RZE—F+-_A=+=H8 ' ~&£ER
Agreement (“Agreement”) with an independent third party in A RERRESIE R mE — 2B E =
relation to the formation of two jointly controlled entities. During AR —IBEE R ([HE]D - BE=T
the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group also entered into ——F+ZA=+—HIFE ' AEET
hotel consultancy agreements with these jointly controlled entities B BLAE A B A% 32 A R JE i R A R I '
for establishment of two hotels in the PRC. BRI B IE M i o

As at 1 January Hn—A—H 9,503,801 —
Share of results DGR (20,870) (76,354)
Loans granted to BETHAEEZESER2EX
jointly controlled entities 10,010,000 12,017,000
Elimination of unrealised profit HH S8 ER £ [R) 47 ) 2 B8
on transactions with 2 AR 5
jointly controlled entities — (2,436,845)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 19,492,931 9,508,801
The details of the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities AEBRAREHERB 2 EaNFBR
are as follows: K
Attributable
Place of Date of Issued equity Principal
Name of company incorporation incorporation share capital interest activity
NCIEE o fif it B a1t B 5 EBRTRA BERAER FEEK
Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong 7 October 2011 2 ordinary 60% Investment holding
Waterfront Tourism shares of and hotel operation
Limited HK$1 each
“EHRERKERE BE ZE——FT+AtR FRIALH REZR OB E &
BRAA] 20k Ak
Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong 7 October 2011 2 ordinary 60% Investment holding
Jinhua Tourism shares of and hotel operation
Limited HK$1 each
SEUREERERE BF “T——F+A+tA FRIBTH REZERREESE
BRAA] 2R E E AR

7
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 18 MARERIE R 2 s @

ENTITIES (Continued)

The cost of unlisted investments in jointly controlled entities RERIEHIE S 2 JE ETHIRB R ABRIET
includes shareholder’s loans of HK$22,027,000 (2011: R B MEREME T ELRIEHE
HK$12,017,000) to jointly controlled entities for establishment BRI R B #22,027,00008 7T (— T —
of two hotels in the PRC. The Group will not demand for the —% 12,017,000 70) - AEEWEE
repayment of the shareholder’s loans, and accordingly, these KEBZBRRER  ARZEERERA
loans are treated as capital injection by the Group into jointly AEBEHRIEFER 2 TE - ZFER
controlled entities. These loans are denominated in HKS$, AR E - SBERLES -

unsecured and non-interest bearing.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s A REARR S RSB R L EESE
interests in jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using BESHNTBERBWT

the equity method is set out below:

Non-current assets ERBNE E 28,266,015 18,266,015
Current assets MEEE 8,491 4
Total assets BERT 28,274,506 18,266,019
Current liabilities mENAE (33,400) (5,516,634)
Net assets BEFE 28,241,106 12,749,385
Loss for the year FEEHE 34,783 127,257




i B %l?%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ
—z——58% 109

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10 e NBEEEFEED

Cash at bank RITIRE 20,693,546 13,169,343
Cash on hand FHERE 7,186,930 2,981,213

27,880,476 16,150,556

Maximum exposure to credit risk SO T S 20,693,546 13,169,343
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash on hand and cash at AEBWFERS MRTRE ZREEN
bank are denominated in the following currencies: Ty E¥EHE :

Reminbi AR 9,030,737 9,901,196
Hong Kong dollars BT 18,849,739 6,249,360

27,880,476 16,150,556

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has cash at bank amounting RZZE——F+_A=+—0 ' x5EK
to HK$1,844,717 (2011: HK$6,919,983), which are denominated SRITIRE 51,844,717 T (T ——F :
in RMB and held in the PRC. The conversion of RMB 6,919,983 7T) + UAREFHERFRH
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance o MARMBIEEB LEINERRILE
of such foreign currencies denominated bank balances and cash SNEESTE R IRITAS B8R IR B [ H R B3R
out from the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulations of GBS IEKHTﬁEﬁ‘ﬁE’Wl\EA%U%EE\'J
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. ERRARR o
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20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 B
Company
AT
Number of
Amount
k|
HK$
BTT

CHETS

R4 E

Authorised: JETE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  #AXE{EO0.0178 LA & B

At 1 January 2011

R—E——F—H—H

Upon incorporation Rz B (a) 39,000,000 390,000
Increase in authorised share EINEFRRO.01BTHEERA (o)

capital of HK$0.01 each 741,000,000 7,410,000
At 31 December 2011 and W_ZE——F+-_HA=+—~1

31 December 2012 K—_ZE——_F+_HA=+—H 780,000,000 7,800,000

Issued and fully paid: BERITRER

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each AR E{EO0.0178 LA B

At 1 January 2011 R=—E——F—H—H - —

Upon incorporation RS B (a) 1 1

Share swaps B #kHm (d) 135,000,000 1,350,000

Issue of shares by way of placing AR & 77 X ZE 17D (e) 45,000,000 450,000

At 31 December 2011 and R_E——F+=-A=+—H

31 December 2012 rF=ZT—=—F+=RA=+—H 180,000,001 1,800,001

Notes: B &

(a) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23 (8 WR=ZZTE—F_A=—+=8'AQFMN
February 2011 with an authorised share capital of HK$390,000 5 TE B ZX390,000/% 7T 5 £39,000,000
divided into 39,000,000 shares at par of HK$0.01 each. Upon BREREEC.OIBTZIRNAHESES
incorporation, 1 share was alloted and issued at fully paid to the AR o REMKIIE - AAEIRZ
initial subscriber on 23 February 2011. T——F - A -+ =HAFERETIRE

RO TNEREA o
(b)  On 1 March 2011, the shareholder of a subsidiary has injected b) R=T—F=FA—8 ' —FENBAA

2 IR B EEREZ9,990,0008 LIEAE
R - LB AR 2B BEITIRAR
Itk B9 10,0007% 7T 2 10,000,00078 7T °

share capital of HK$9,990,000 as paid-up capital and the issued
capital of the subsidiary increased from HK$10,000 to
HK$10,000,000.



20 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

21

Notes: (Continued)

() On 23 March 2011, the authorised share capital of the Company

was increased from HK$390,000 to HK$7,800,000 by the creation
of an additional 741,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

135,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
by the Company at par to the then shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Group, Legend Strategy Limited, credited as fully paid.

In connection with the placing of shares of the Company, an
aggregate of 45,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued at a price of HK$1.20 per share for a total cash
consideration of HK$54,000,000, net of issuance costs of
HK$15,519,756.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT — GROUP AND
COMPANY

Share options are granted to selected employees. The exercise
price of the granted options is equal to the market price of the
shares on the date of the grant. The options are exercisable for
two years from the grant date. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

v %l?%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ
=551 111

—7

20 B& 7N ()

Mz« (&)

RZBE——F=ZA=_+=H " AR
B8R 741,000,000 &A% E{EO0.01 ;‘én
2 B A7 38 0% 7E B 7K 53.390,0007% 7T 3 A
27,800,000/ JT °

©)]

ARRREERAZEHAEEZMER
Al hERARARZIRRACE NETE
A& E{E0.0187T#Y135,000,000% A& 15 -
ABRIEEBUR °

RARBRABEEMS  AAREBKRS
B1.20B8 L2 EBRABESAE
54,000,0008 7w (2K ETER
15,519,7567%8 70) #1714 $£45,000,000
B EE0.01/8 TR T @Ak -

AR D i B 2 (3 — K
SB LA RE]

BRRIETEEES - E?ﬁi’*ﬁﬁﬂﬂfé&z
TEESNERLARZERN 2HE © %
FRBAER N AR RE WTﬂ;‘E
AEEYEEAFSEEAR BRI REE
% FRERHE o

21

AT G BRAGARE I AR B A T3 7T Bk
BT

2012 2011
—g-—¢ “FT—F

Average Average

exercise price exercise price

in HK$ per in HK$ per
share option Options share option Options

BREF EiRETY

THRE 176E(E
(BRE ) BhkE (EBRET Ak
At 1 January n—A—H - - = =
Granted & 1.33 900,000 - -
At 31 December BR+=—RA=+—H 1.33 900,000 - -

All the options (2011: N/A) were exercisable. In relation to the
options granted, none was exercised nor expired during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

FEBRESITE(CE——F « T#F
B BE—_ZT——F+_A=+—HIt
FE - BREBREETESE® °

7
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21 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT — GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry date and exercise prices:

21 AR RERE Z MK — &

CETNS I N/NEINE )

FRAARTITEZ AR EM B A RITE
BT -

Exercise
price in HK$
per share Options
option B IR A
Expiry date BRETEE 2012 2011
&% B HA (BR#E ) =E-=F —T——F
20 February 2014 R-ZE—mMFEF-_A=-+H 1.33 900,000 =
900,000 —

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the
year determined using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model was
HK$0.25 per option. The significant inputs into the model were
weighted average share price of HK$1.33 at the grant date,
exercise price shown above, expected volatility of 48%, an
expected option life of two years, and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 4%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily share prices since the Company was listed.
Please see Note 7 for the total expenses recognised in the profit
or loss for share options granted to employees.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the volatility
with reference to other similar companies is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessity be the actual outcome.

FARR L 2 BN I FH R FETIRE
R=EARERETERAETE  HEEE
PeHE0.25/8 7T - AR AMBEBAZ B AR
B8 bt P9 E1.33/8 7T ~ LA LFTR
1IE(E - FEERIE48% N TR HIRB A S 1
MEARERBRFEN KL% - UFEEES
B EFHE 2 BEREAE KB IRE
ARRREWARNE B RES DM
H - AR TREREBREN ST RN
FX BB ER  F2HMET -

BHRERTARBE - H2EEMREER
RAVRIERARRELETE - T EHE
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22 RESERVES 22 f#tE
Group RE
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share financial Share- earnings/
Share Exchange Statutory option assets Other holder’s  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve contributions losses)
e RERR/
RHEE NERE Eeff  BRERE CREERR EfbftE kRig  (BHER)
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(35 (Fr3E()
HKS HKS HKS
At 1 January 2011 RZF——5-f-R - 1,127,980 182,452 - - (678,549) 20,751,024 (6,197,791) 15,285,116
Profit for the year FRET - - - - = - — 21264683 21,264,683
Currency translation EEERER
differences - 562,711 - - - - - - 562,711

Shares issued pursuantto - RESBEARBAHKA

group reorganisation (B £ (i)

(Note (i) - - - - - 8,598,659 - - 8,598,659
Issuance of shares, netof TR BMRRAZTER)

share issuing expenses  (Fif£20(0)

(Note 20(d) 38,030,244 - - - - - - - 38,030,244
Transfer to statutory reserve. R AT - - 317,548 - - - = (317,548) =
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=+-0 38030244 1,690,691 500,000 - - 8,020,110 20,751,024 14,749,344 883,741,413
At 1 January 2012 R=E--%-f-H 38,030,244 1,690,691 500,000 - - 8,020,110 20,751,024 14,749,344 83,741,413
Profit for the year ERiai - - - - - - - 32871668 32,871,668
Currency translaion ERERZE

differences - 249,923 - - - - - - 249,923
Falr value changes on ARHESHEEATA

avallable-for-sale pa L)

financial assets - - - - 178,000 - - - 178,000
Employee share option benefit /& & B & & - - - 224,000 - - - - 224,000

Transfer to statutory reserve EEZ AT R -

661,018 - - - - (661,018) -

At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+-A=t-H 36,030,244 1,040,614 1,161,018 224,000 178,000 8,020,110 20,751,024 46,959,994 117,265,004
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22 RESERVES (Continued)

22 @

Company P/ N/NE]
Available-for-
Share  sale financial
Share option assets  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses
AR E
RkigEE ERERE SHEERE 2HER
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—-F—-AH = = = = =
Loss for the year FRER - - - (1,208809)  (1,208,809)
Issuance of shares, BEIRG
net of share issuing expenses (BNBRRAETER) 38,030,244 - - — 38,030,244
At 31 December 2011 WZZE——%+-A=+—H 38,030,244 — — (1,208,809) 36,821,435

Available-for-
Share sale financial
Share option assets Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses
THREE
RAGRE BRERE SHEERE 2 ER
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B B
At 1 January 2012 RZE-——&-f-H 38,030,244 - - (1,208,809) 36,821,435
Loss for the year FRESR - - - (1,456,134)  (1,456,134)
Fair value changes on EHESREEATE
available-for-sale financial assets 228 - - 178,000 - 178,000
Employee share option benefit 1B B R ERT - 224,000 - - 224,000
At 31 December 2012 WZZE——F+-A=+—H 38,030,244 224,000 178,000 (2,664,943) 35,767,301

Note (i):

Note (ii):

In accordance with the relevant regulations and the Article of
association, the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
are required to allocate at least 10% of the after-tax profit
according to the PRC accounting standard and regulations to
general statutory reserve until such reserve has reached 50%
of registered capital. This reserve can only be used for specific
purposes. Appropriation to the general statutory reserve for
the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to HK$661,018
(2011: HK$317,548).

The other reserves represent the difference between the
nominal value of the issued capital of Legend Strategy Limited,
Lai Ying International Limited and Triple Leaf Limited, the then
shareholder of Legend Strategy Limited and the nominal value
of the 135,000,001 shares issued and allotted to the
shareholders of the above companies by the Company.

MIEEG) : BEBEABEARREBKERMA - K
EEN P RFMA N EARZEA
RIEF B 2ER AR D E&E
10% B Bk 7118 00 A1l & — AE E %
% HEEZREEEINFMELN
50% ° R ENAEREEER -
BE-_T——F+-A=+—H1t
FE —BREATCRHEONBRRAE
661,018 T (ZZF——*4F : 317,548

BIT) e
LG - EfbEEEE AR AR - BAR
BERRAR =EBERARRME

ERARERZBRREZBBEITRA
HEBEAQRRZER R ETRAE
2% 2.135,000,001 A% A% 17 EI{E 2 FE HY
E=F o
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PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords,
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel premises
at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy
agreements in 8 to 10 years. Provision is therefore made for the
best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.
Movements of provision for asset retirement are as follows:

23

MR %l?%ﬁﬁﬂa
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R A ER IR A

BEEE T ETOREHRIER - AEE
GBI\ PR SRR S 7
B SR A1 B A B 0 OB S R
W% o BB S A R AR AR R
S RT3 (T - TR R AR A
BHEBOT :

24

At 1 January n—HA—H 3,278,455 3,010,390
Finance cost on asset retirement WmEEE EERBERN

obligations (Note 8) B & A A (P 7E8) 160,421 149,941
Exchange differences PE 5 =% 18,211 118,124
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 3,457,087 3,278,455
FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES 24 MEMEAE

Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured by the rights to
the leased asset. The Group’s motor vehicles amounting to
HK$1,476,100 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:1,857,132) would
revert to the lessor in the event of default (Note 14).

BHEMSEEER FAREEENERNIE
B REBR -—FB——F+-H=+—
H&58 451,476,100 T (ZF——4F :
1,857,132/870) 2 B E X EE E 1
A (FFzE14) o

Gross finance lease liabilities BMEHEAGEERE

— minimum lease payment — EEE[ K
— Not later than 1 year — B —F 470,208 470,208

— Later than 1 year and — BE—FERFUAR

no later than 5 years 944,011 1,414,219
1,414,219 1,884,427
Future finance charges on finance lease  @EHE - BB E B (112,761) (193,585)
Present value of finance lease liabilittes ~ BEHE A BRE 1,301,458 1,690,842

7
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24 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 24 EMERE®
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: MEMEAENRERNT

Not later than 1 year — TEBEg—F 412,305 389,204
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years — BB—FEZHFEUNRN 889,153 1,301,638
1,301,458 1,690,842

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 ERNEB S REMEER

Company

RAT
2012 2011
—E2-=-F —F——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade payables S E 5 FE 2,865,416 2,583,726 - =
Accruals and other payables FERT I E b & 1S R IE 6,199,373 5,633,825 176,000 8,000
9,064,789 8,217,551 176,000 8,000




25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cContinued)

Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows:

i Bl R ‘él? Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ
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25 ENESNEMER @

FEETIH B MEAMBNFIAEDMEIIT

Company
¥ NN
2012
— :q;
HK$
BT
Accruals fEFTTE B
— Accrued staff costs — EEFBE IR 706,385 2,174,164 176,000 8,000
— Accrued audit and — B ERREEER
professional fee 1,520,000 950,000 - —
2,226,385 3,124,164 176,000 8,000
Other payables H A e 1< FRIE
— Other tax payables = EMEH%RIE 2,086,182 1,478,765 - =
— Deferred revenue — B
— membership fee —2%EH 277,480 407,400 - -
— customer loyalty — BFERHEAE
programme 110,453 277,030 - —
— Receipt in advance — fBlFRIA 611,322 - —
— Others — Hfth 887,551 346,466 - —
Other payables Ho{h & 1 5RIE 3,972,988 2,509,661 - —
Total accruals and other payables JEzHE B K &4t
FEfT IR 2R 6,199,373 5,633,825 176,000 8,000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables $%@F’§ﬁ§\%&ﬁ’r@ﬁﬁ K2 B T B £
approximate their fair value. NEERSE
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 25 BNE S RHMER @
The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: JERNTE S RIBHRERSITAT -

0-30 days 0&E 30Kk 940,788 879,626
31-60 days 31 260K 702,292 812,063
61-90 days 61ZE90K 542,906 664,430
Over 90 days BBI0K 679,430 227,607
2,865,416 2,583,726
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables AEEENE S RAMBERREABENAT
are denominated in the following currencies: HIEEEHE
Company
P N/NE
2012 2011
g _—T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Reminbi AR 6,316,205 7,202,795 - —
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,748,584 1,014,756 176,000 8,000
9,064,789 8,217,551 176,000 8,000
26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 26 RIAAREIR
Group and Company
AEBRAEADT
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Convertible notes — debt component AmRER — 8EH0s 29,405,000 —
Financial derivatives TRITAETE 832,000 -
30,237,000 —
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26 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 26 AJRRER @
The Company issued 36,000,000 5.0% convertible notes RZZE——F+A+=H ' AQRIUKE
(“convertible notes”) at a consideration of HK 30.6 million on 30,600,000/ 7T #1736,000,0004% 5 | &
12 October 2012. The convertible notes will mature two years ASEMAT R ERE ([AJRRER]) - 7]
from the issue date at 112% of the outstanding principal or can MR EIRAS BT B AR AT M2 2 A -
be converted into shares at the holder’s option anytime at a REEZ AU BRREBEBHEARRRIAR
conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. In addition, the EEARECREZ112%EM © SkAFE AR
convertible notes can be early redeemed by the Company BRMERREZESR0.85BIT 2 HIREN
anytime at 112% of the outstanding principal. BERE o 1IN - KRR A BERIZARER

AL 112% A1 B O TR R R -

The convertible notes recognised in the statement of financial R FEAR TR PR 2 IR E B TR IR
position is calculated as follows: TH SR E -

Group and Company

AEBRAAT
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Face value of convertible notes RZE—Z—F+HA+ZHET
issued on 12 October 2012 Z A MR ER 2 A TE 30,600,000 —
Financial derivatives SRITETHR (832,000) —
Less: transactions cost B RBEA (918,000) —
Debt component on initial recognition RZE——F+H+=H
at 12 October 2012 NRERZ BEES 28,850,000 —
Interest expense (Note 8) 2 (fifzEs) 890,000 —
Interest paid B F.8 (335,000) —

Debt component at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+=-A=+—H

ZBEBD 29,405,000 =
As at 31 December 2012, the debt component is discounted at RZE——F+_A=+—H " aEHS
an effective interest rate of 14%. TR BRI EA14%85IR o
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 27 BEIEFEH
BERBAESFNT -

The analysis of deferred tax assets is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets: ELEFTEHRAE
— Deferred income tax assets — #BR121E A & U E A
to be recovered after more than EEFTIS & BE
12 months 1,065,638 1,464,204
— Deferred income tax assets — #BR121E A AUk E A
to be recovered within 12 months BEFSHEE 386,585 324,061
1,452,223 1,788,265

The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is RAFEA - BEMSHEEZEWNT

as follows:

Accelerated
tax

depreciation Provisions

ERBANE BE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 1 January 2011 R-—E——%—H—H 205,943 1,323,677 1,529,620
Credited to profit or loss STABD 66,517 129,206 195,723
Exchange differences M =R 9,097 53,825 62,922
At 31 December 2011 RZZE—F+=-A=+—H 281,557 1,508,708 1,788,265
At 1 January 2012 R—E——F—HF—H 281,557 1,506,708 1,788,265
Credited/(debited) to profit or loss & A/ (B Z) 825 58,720 (405,222) (346,502)
Exchange differences N ZE5 1,647 8,813 10,460
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+=-A=+—H 341,924 1,110,299 1,452,223

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group does not
recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$4,057,673 (2011:
Nil) in respect of losses amounting to HK$669,516 (2011: Nil)
that can be carried forward against taxable income. The tax loss
can be carried forward indefinitely.

fim 78 AR 75 Fl 2 1] BE 38 B B A R PR B ER T
AR AREFTSREERATEE Y
RIS EERAR o NEE IR A fi1E
4588 K 2R R R Al 2 B 184,057,673
T(ZE——F : B)ERELHBEE
669,516/ 7T (T ——4 : #) o ZHIA
B8R T 458 -
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 BIEFTER @)
Deferred tax liabilities of HK$999,263 (2011: HK$506,977) have WE BN KA E THB AR ZAEF
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that BE [ AT RE B4 2 B B E R RIEE R T &
would be payable on the remitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. £999,263%8 T (ZF ——% : 506,977/%
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings TL) c RESFEEEKAERE - RZE—
totaled HK$19,985,253 at 31 December 2012 (2011: —F+-A=t+—H8 ELAENEHXE
HK$10,139,542). 19,985,253 L (ZF — —F :
10,139,542/ 7T) °
28 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 28 RARIN—EKHE AT izh Tz
AMOUNT TO A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY B R EN—RH B AR FIA
Company
PN
2012
—_— ﬂ;
HK$
BT
Non-current asset EREEE
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEmRGD - BRAE 8 8
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WS BT /B 1 R R IE (a) 37,507,639 37,507,639
37,507,647 37,507,647
Current asset MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WS BT /B8 X R 5K IE (o) 29,152,653 —
Current liability meEra &
Amount to a subsidiary N —FHREBARTRIE (b 636,900 636,900
(a)  Amount due from subsidiaries are denominated in HK$, unsecured, (a) ERMBARFIBIIASITE &K
interest free and repayable on a date to be mutually agreed by o EmAERRRESTHEZEEAE
both parties. 8 o
(b)  Amount due from/to subsidiaries are denominated in HK$, (b) U HIE D R B T AE TTAHE
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. IR EF B RBRERERE -
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28 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 28 AnEIR—HMHEB AR K
AMOUNT TO A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY & N e —FEM B 2~ R FKIE
(Continued) (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H WBAA
are as follows: ZEIRIAT
Issued and
fully paid
Place of Date of share capital/ Attributable
incorporation/ incorporation/ registered equity
Name of company establishment establishment capital interest Principal activities
: ERfREUBE/
AGIES SRR/ R AL/ KA dHER EiERrEs TEXH
Legend Strategy British Virgin 15 December 2010 1 ordinary share 100% Investment holding
International Limited Islands (“BVI) of US$1 each (direct)
WERRER AR ABRLES “E-ZET-_AtER BRiERM (B%) REER
((EBELES]) 1RERR
Legend Strategy Limited Hong Kong 28 May 2007 10,000 ordinary 100% Investment holding and
shares of (indirect) provision of hotel
HK$1 each consultancy services
WAERRAR &b “ERLERACTAR BRiERH (%) REER RR4EEBR R
10,000 & & i
Welcome Inn Management ~ Hong Kong 24 October 2011 1 ordinary shares 100% Provision of hotel management
Limited (Date of acquisition) of HK$1 each (indirect) services
WREREEERERAR &E ZE-—F+AZtHE  SRiETMIREER (F#) REEBEERRE
(kER)
Legend Strategy BVI 1 October 2011 1 ordinary share 100% Rental of hotel premise
Management Limited of US$1 (indirect)
WEERERAA RBRAEE Z2——41H-H RIZTMIRE AR (F%) BENZRE
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Tourists ~ The PRC 11 December 2006 HK$8,000,000 100% Hotel operations
Co., Ltd. (indirect)
AMIBREERZERRA  HE ZEEAEFZA+T—H  8,000,000% T (%) BEEE
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists The PRC 30 May 2008 HK$8,000,000 100% Hotel operations
Co., Ltd. (indirect)
AIBOEEERAT e ZESN\ERA=TH  8,000,000%T (%) BESE
Shenzhen Modern Tourists ~~ The PRC 25 April 2008 HK$1,000,000 100% Hotel operations and provision
(indirect) of hotel consultancy
services
ABEBEXERERAT P ZZE/\FMA=+RA 1,000,00057T (%) BESERREEEBR RS
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Co., Ltd. The PRC 26 November 2008 HKD5,000,000 100% Hotel operations
(indirect)
ARRERBRLE] ki “RE\F+-AZ1H 500000087 (@) BESE
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 29 HfEwm T A
Group RE
Loans and Available-
receivables for-sale
EXNRERGE AHEE
HK$ HK$
B B
31 December 2012 R=Z-—f+=ZA=t-8H
Assets as per statement of FIAMBERRRNEE
financial position
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESRERE - 1,162,000 1,162,000
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS FEY 27,880,476 - 27,880,476
Trade and other receivables FEIE 5 R B o e e 5 IE
excluding prepayments (TBEEMTE) 62,209,153 - 62,209,153
Total @ 90,089,629 1,162,000 91,251,629
Financial
Financial liabilities at
Derivatives amortised cost
R 8 R A
TEERMIE HtBEaE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
31 December 2012 R-ZB-Z§+=ZA=+-8H
Liabilities as per statement of FINRBRRERNEE
financial position
Convertible notes — debt component AR ZEE — AEXH - 29,405,000 29,405,000
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTIA 832,000 - 832,000
Finance lease liabilities MEMERRE - 1,301,458 1,301,458
Trade and other payables I E 5 R E M ERFIE
excluding non-financial liabilities (TREFeRARE) - 5,272,967 5,272,967
Total b 832,000 35,979,425 36,811,425
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 29 HfES£ @ T A @

-

(Continued)
Group (Continued) AEE &)
Loans and
receivables Total
ER K EWFRIE FkE
HK$ HK$
AT AT
31 December 2011 R=-ZF——F+=-H=+-—H
Assets as per statement of SIAMBARRRAOEE
financial position
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEEBY 16,150,556 16,150,556
Trade and other receivables U E 5 K H b e W kI8
excluding prepayments (MR IEENFIE) 31,018,952 31,018,952
Total LR 47,169,508 47,169,508
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
birg: B DN
FHENERER
HK$
AT
31 December 2011 R=-ZE——F+=-H=+-—H
Liabilities as per statement of FIABGEARRERNEE
financial position
Amount due to a director FENEEFRIE 582,031 582,031
Finance lease liabilities BmEHEAE 1,690,842 1,690,842
Trade and other payables B2 5 & EH b I8
excluding non-financial liabilities (TBEEEemEaR) 3,880,192 3,880,192
Total FLEC] 6,153,065 6,153,065
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Company P/ N/NE]

Loans and
receivables

ERRERRE

HK$

Available-
for-sale
AHEE
HK$

Vb

31 December 2012 R-E-—%+-A=+-H

BT

Assets as per statement of FIABBERAERNEE
financial position
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEsREE - 1,162,000 1,162,000
Other receivables Hfth YRR 794,902 - 794,902
Total g 794,902 1,162,000 1,956,902

Financial
derivatives

fTEEMIA
HK$

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RHHE A
FENERERE
HK$

b

31 December 2012 R-E-—%+-A=+-H

b

Liabilities as per statement of FIABBEREENEE
financial position
Accruals Est & - 176,000 176,000
Amount due to a subsidiary R —R B RFRE - 636,900 636,900
Convertible notes — debt component AR ZEE — AEXH - 29,405,000 29,405,000
Derivative financial instruments TEERMTA 832,000 - 832,000
Total ot ] 832,000 30,217,900 31,049,900
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

Company (Continued)

31 December 2011 R-E-—-%+-A=+-H

Assets as per statement of FIABBERAERNEE
financial position
Other receivables Hi IR

29 DM T A @

2 /NCING

Loans and
receivables
BT R ESGIR

HK$
BT

1,758,689

Available-
for-sale
At &
HK$

BT

1,758,689

31 December 2011 R-E-—-%+-H=1+-H

Financial
derivatives

TESRIEA
HK$
7t

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

RE A

SHENERAR

HK$
AT

Liabilities as per statement of FIARBRRERNEE
financial position
Accruals [EFTER - 8,000 8,000
Amount due to a subsidiary et —FEH B A B3R - 636,900 636,900
Total s — 644,900 644,900
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30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 0 &= FT1g

SHE

Profit before income tax B BT A5 B0 B A 43,726,938 28,852,033
Adjustments for: BTHIEE A
— Depreciation — & 7,959,800 7,091,127
— Amortisation of prepaid operating — AR E M A
lease 850,590 212,647
— Finance cost, net — MEKEK — F5 1,000,868 148,773
— Provision for impairment of trade — B S RN R ERE
receivables 1,500,000 —
— Share of results of jointly controlled — DIEHEZEREE 2 EE
entities 20,870 2,513,199
— Share based payment expenses — R AER 2 RFAX 224,000 —
Operating cash flow before changes in BEAEHANLERESME
working capital 55,283,066 38,812,779
Changes in working capital: BIEE AR
— Increase in trade and other — B 5 RH b FEUGRIEIE AN
receivables (21,228,256) (40,289,368)
— Increase in rental deposits — HEREE N (207,220) =
— Increase in trade and other payables — — & 5 K E h & 15 BR ZIE o0 800,204 222 259
— Decrease in amount due to a director — ENEFRERD (582,031) (756,072)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #& & &4/ (Fif)IR& 34,065,763 (2,010,402)
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31 COMMITMENTS 31 A4z
(@) Operating lease commitment (@) REMHERE
The Group leases various hotel premises under non- ANER B R BUREE 5 Y 2 AT e T 8
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms wEHEREHEE - HEBREGK
of the tenancy agreements are set out in Note 23. The YR HE23 c HEGHAB B
leases have escalation clauses and renewal rights. The ME G RERE - RRBFTHE
future aggregate minimum lease payments are as follows: MemT :

No later than 1 year B —F 16,363,076 11,613,064
Later than 1 year and BYE—FEZERFUAA

no later than 5 years 54,452,348 30,369,053
Over 5 years B8R E 77,699,150 586,799

148,514,574 42,568,916

(b) Capital commitment (o) B AAFEIE
The Group’s capital expenditure at the end of the reporting REBRHERRITARKEENER
period but not yet incurred is as follows: FxXmT :

Contracted but not provided for: BT B AR B -

— Capital injection to jointly — HHEREHEE 2 EE
controlled entities 1,782,590 3,852,618
— Property, plant and equipment  — ¥ % - BE MR E 43,383,844 =

45,166,434 3,852,618
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31 COMMITMENTS (continued) 31 A¥E )
(b) Capital commitment (Continued) (o) BARAEIE &)
The Group’s share of capital expenditure of jointly controlled FFA LB IE 2 AEE S (hHFZE
entities included above is as follows: HERBCEARAZNT :

Contracted but not provided for: BET#EREAE
— Property, plant and equipment ~ — ¥ ¥ - BE KRG 4,913,576 7,338,552
The Company has no other material commitments as at A—E——F+-"HA=+—H" K
31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). NEN AR E REE(ZE——
Fm) o
32 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 32 RRKLEHELH
ARRANGEMENTS
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had future aggregate RZZB——F+-A=+—8  KEER
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases TREFTIBCE M EIR T 2 R R BT (K FE
as follows: AL mT

No later than 1 year B —F 2,460,479 2,446,184
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years B —F 2 AF AR 9,841,914 9,784,736
Over 5 years B F 9,176,375 11,619,374

21,478,768 23,850,294

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HABE
The Group and the Company have no significant contingent R-ZE——F+_-_A=+—H KEEK
liabilities at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). AR WEEREANKAEE (2T ——
F o E) o
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 HBERH
The Group is controlled by Mr. Fong Man, Kelvin (“Mr. Fong”), AREEBFEE(TRE]D ES - Ak
who owns 57% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 43% of BARREIST% 2 I - R T 43% 2 IR
the shares are widely held. The ultimate controlling party of the RRFFH o NEBE 2 &R /7 X5k
Group is Mr. Fong Man, Kelvin. Detalils of transactions between & o RERE RIS IREB P ATIREERRSN - K
the Group and the related parties are as follows, save as disclosed SEEEET CHNRZFHBEHINNT -

in the consolidated financial statements.

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had () #E=—T——F+=ZA=+—HiL
transferred certain amounts to the personal bank accounts FE > AEEC RERMNRTING
of a director, who then paid to external independent BUBES 2 —BESWEARITE
vendors. The nature and the amounts transferred during FERELSTESHE —F—— 8
2011 were summarised as follows: 2B RegERNT

— Operating expenses — BiBERY - 2,408,622
— Loans to jointly controlled entities — 2t T H R HIE 52 2 B - 12,000,000
— Prepayment for property, — W% - BEME&E BN FIE
plant and equipment - 5,000,000
— Leasehold improvements on — HEBREMFE 2 HEMEEE
leased hotel premises - 4,791,378
- 24,200,000
(b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with (b) TREINAEBRARNFENEGE
the related party during the year: FTHEARS :

Expenses paid by a director —REERERAEELINZ2ER

on behalf of the Group

— Mr. Fong — ALK - 582,031
Repayment to amount due EEENESHIE

to a director

— Mr. Fong — ALK 582,031 —
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32 FERS @)
(©)

Eﬁiﬁg‘a\ Emﬂzu\nlﬂ

Amount due to a director JENEERIE

— Mr. Fong — HHAE - 582,031
Amounts due for jointly controlled T ARE SEFARH~

entities included in trade debtors H [R5 F 88 2 78 - 5,506,670
Loans to jointly controlled entities h{?&% LEIEHIEE 2B 22,027,000 12,017,000

Payable to a director is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. Amount due to a director is
denominated in RMB.

Amount due from jointly controlled entities are interest-free,
unsecured and with credit terms of 7 days upon acceptance
of services. Amount is denominated in HKS$.

Loans to jointly controlled entities are interest free,
unsecured and repayable on a date to be mutually agreed

by both parties. Amount is denominated in HKS$.

Key management compensation

The compensation paid or payable to key management is
as follows:

BT —REEZRIBAERA
RENRIREREE - BNEEFA
AARBEHE -

R HRZEGERZ KBRS &
H£H - EEH QT%EHE%&JCEHJ
Hi o ZHRIAABITEHE ©

%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁE%Z%ﬁﬁé~
RN T 2 B0 R
SHIB LB T EHE -

F EE 1R E R

B RN EEEEERMMT

Salaries, wages and allowances e TEREM 2,203,452 913,456
Pension obligations RIKEEH 172,370 129,696
2,375,822 1,043,152
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Summary financial information
B A2

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2007 and HRAEBREE _ET+ER _TTN\F+
2008 was not disclosed as combined financial statements for the Group ~ —A=+—H It FE W ER R A H H7f ﬁ%iﬁzi’%

have not been prepared for those years. The summary of the combined ~ MIWERBEZSFENMEER - REFEEHE
results of the Group for each of the two years ended 31 December —ZEZENFER-_T—ZF+_-_F=+—HItW

2009 and 2010 and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests 1¢F§%¢Eﬁéfﬁ%%§*ﬁi%%&$%@ﬁé:g
of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and 2010 has been extracted ZTNER -T—FF+ - F=+— EI E’\Jﬁ%
from the Company’s listing prospectus dated 30 June 2011. Such & f{& & IFE %'J MERDBSEERRFRN_E—
summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group has —E/XA=1+B BN tHHRKRSRE - A%ﬁ%
been in existence throughout these financial years. The consolidated ~ Z iR E A EE AR B RER Aﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁf‘ilﬁ
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the  —EHFENBRERMER - KEFEH S
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group ~ £+ - A =+—R FFE HERA %A R $%

as at 31 December 2012 are those set out in the audited financial R-ZE——E+-A=+—BNGEEEE " &
statements. BRIEEH RN EZABREA ©
RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2011 2010
—FE——%F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue A 91,155,199 69,592,354 32,317,933 19,545,963
Profit/(loss) before tax BR B AT A, (E518) 43,726,938 28,852,033 13,522,667 (3,385,339)
Income tax expense FTiSHi X (10,855,270) (7,587,350) (3,973,136) (91,480)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF ~ (F8) 32,871,668 21,264,683 9,549,531 (3,476,819)
Attributable to: BUR AN B4
Owners of the Company AN RIEA A 32,871,668 21,264,683 9,185,202 (3,187,896)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE#5 # 1 #E 25 - — 364,329 (288,923)
32,871,668 21,264,683 9,549,531 (3,476,819)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE - BENMIEESIMER
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2011 2010
—T——F —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Total assets BEE 176,160,788 107,146,344 31,597,999 32,873,140
Total liabilities BEE (57,095,783)  (21,604,930) (16,312,883)  (45,037,344)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE#Z i 14 25 - — — (2,393,525)

119,065,005 85,641,414 15,285,116 (14,557,729)

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial i EW T EX KSERIHERER 2 — 0 °
statements.
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